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The history of local
and nearby churches,
and various church groups

Birmingham’s 1st Church
Was Built by Methodists

An itinerant circuit rider preaching in the Willets Log+

Tavern brought Methodism to Birmingham in 1821. One

hundred and thirty-one years

later the new First Methodist

Church, a beautiful Gothic structure on West Maple avenue,
opened its doors to a congregation of over twelve hundred.

In 1822 Dr. Ezra S. Parke start-+

ed holding Sunday meetings at his
home. In 1827 Rev. William Pattee
of the Ohio Conference formed the
first group of Birmingham wor-
shippers into a society, the first
organization in the village which
then consisted of three houses
erected by Elijah Willets, John
Hunter and John Hamilton.

ABOVE: CITY LANDMARK NO LONGER EXISTS

The Oakland circuit was formed
the following year and included
Troy, Auburn, Farmington and
Pontiac.. Summer meetings were

held in barns and winter meetings
in the tavern or individual homes,
with services usually conducted by
local leaders.

It was considered a special event

Below: Beautiful new Methodist church on W. Maple

when a minister or presiding elder
came riding into town to preach
and visit with the people.
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THE FIRST OFFICIAL church
structure in Birmingham, often
called “Piety Hill,” was the Meth-
odist one at the corner of Merrill
and Bates streets, built in 1839
and financed by two of its members,
Stephen Chatfield and Michael
Bloomberg. Thirty-seven persons
comprised the congregation.

This frame building was torn
down in 1926 after having served
as -church, library and town hall.
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THE 15 YEARS following the
organization of Birmingham Meth-
odists found the group listed in the
Oakland circuit, but in 1842 when
the Michigan Conference changed
its geographical districts, the Bir-
mingham circuit was formed per-
mitting the pastor to devote all
of his time to this area.

During the Civil War period,
Birmingham was the only place in
the district to maintain a Sunday
School continuously. The average
church service attendance num-
bered about 65, with. Sunday School
about 50.

A report lists six class leaders,
nine stewards who administered
the business of the church, two
local preachers, and a Sunday
School superintendent. The pastor
received $500 annually.
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THE SECOND CHURCH, a land-
mark torn down only this past
December, was built in 1871 at a
cost of $20,000 and dedicated in
1873. The Rev. Robert Bird was
the minister.

Church men hauled stone, brick
and wood while the women came
along to cook the meals. Active in
the project were Mr. and Mrs.
James, Mr. and Mrs. Peter Kerr,
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur Ford, Mr.
and Mrs. Aaron Heacock, Mr. and
Mrs. Silas Wattles, Mr. and Mrs.
Fred King, Mr. and Mrs. William
Allen and Mr, and Mrs. Clark
Pearsall.

The list continues with Mr. and
Mrs. William Hagerman, Mrs.
Harris, Mrs. Addie Bayley, Mrs.
Tibby Boyd, L. L. Houghton and
Robert Bookham,

A new parsonage was built on
the site in 1877. In 1886 the

Woman’s Home Missionary Society
was organized; the Foreign Mis-
sionary Society came ten years
later. The Epworth League was
founded in 1889.
An ever-increasing congregation
(Continued on Page 15)

forever”.

many denominations.

worship.

of ”

“Darkness is strong, and so is Sin, but surely God endures

From the days when Birmingham'’s earliest
inhabitants settled here, the deep yearning for
spiritual development among them definitely
assured the building of houses of worship.

Over the intervening 13 years many reli-
gious groups have banded together to erect their
own churches, so that today the area embraces

Due to Birmingham’s most rapid increases
in population during the past few years, not
only have new denominations opened their own
churches, but several of the older churches have
found it necessary to build larger edifices of

We have tried, in this special 75th Anniver-
sary Edition, to present the story of this com-
munity’s devotion to carrying into action one
of the great American freedoms included in
the nation’s Bill of Rights:
make no law respecting an establishment of
religion, or prohibiting the free exercise there-

\

~—James Russell Lowell

“Congress shall

Council of Churches

- Organized in 1947

Growing out of a dormant Ministerial Association of Bir-
mingham, the Birmingham Council of Churches came into

being in 1947.

Protestant ministers were invited into the Council through
the efforts of the YMCA’s executive secretary, Ed Kirbert.
The earlier organization of ministers had ceased to function
and it was felt that the need for a combination of effort again

was clearly apparent.

Under Kirbert’s direction,
schedule of regular monthly meet-
ings was established, when pastors
of participating churches could dis-
cuss mutual problems. Through
the council, they have been able
to take their messages of Chris-
tian living and truth to the com-
munity on a larger scale.

The council program has been
arranged to include united wor-
ship, social relations, Christian ed-
ucation and other objectives of
the church which touch all areas of
human life. -

Participating = churches include
First Presbyterian, First Method-
ist, Embury Methodist, St. James
and Christ Church Cranbrook Epis-
copal churches, Franklin Commu-
nity, Townsite Community (Con-
gregational), Church of the Naza-
rene, Kirk in the Hills (Presby-
terian), Redeemer, Our Shepherd
and Ascension Lutheran churches.
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AT THE START of the council,
the Rev. W. Glen Harris, Ph.D., of
the First Presbyterian church
served as president pro tem. He
was succeeded by the Rev. Arnold
F. Runkel, D.D., of the First Meth-
odist church.

The Rev. Harold E. Towne of
St. James was named president in
1948, to be followed by the Rev.
Emil Kontz of the First Baptist
church and the Rev. Reginald Beck-
er of Embury.

Currently the Rev. Robert
Graham, assistant pastor of the
First Presbyterian church, heads
the organization. Kirbert has
served as secretary-treasurer con-
tinuously since the Council’s for-
mation.
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THE COUNCIL has concerned
itself with the religious affairs of
young people in the community.
Periodi¢ youth services have been

held and an interest in youth ac-

at

tivities maintained.

Through the YMCA, a Y-church
basketball league has been formed
to give young men and boys an op-
portunity.. to ..enjoy ..competitive
sports programs.

Community-wide programs which
the council has sponsored include
the union services on Good Friday

and Thanksgiving mornings. A
Protestant Reformation service

also is held each year.

In connection with its programs,
the council has brought some of
the nation’s most noted speakers
in the field of religion to speak be-
fore Birmingham groups.

A member of the council recently
said he felt it has been of great
benefit to member-churches in
their efforts to keep the spiritual

growth of the community on a

satisfactory level with its popula-
tion growth.

Cats Had Fondness l
For Church Organ

At the Episcopal church in re-
cent years, a cat made news every
so often by having kittens in the
most unusual places. The rear of
the church organ seemed to be a
favorite spot.

'Way back in 1902, the local
Episcopalians were also having dif-
ficulty with cats and organs. Since
the church organ was “acting up”,
an expert was brought out from
Detroit to regulate, adjust and re-
new it.

When the expert opened up the
organ, he at once extracted some-
body’s family cat. The poor feline
was almost starved to death.

The vestrymen puzzled for weeks
trying to figure out how it was
that poor tabby got inside the in-
ternal constriiction of the church
organ. The answer never was de-
termined. . . ,




" Rungs on the ladder
to a
SMART
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APPEARANCE
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LONG-WEARING VALUE

KNOX HATS—“Hats made so fine all others must

be compared to them.”

Only Style-Mart has exclusive “Neck-Zone tailor-
ing.” Suits so mastél'full,\f tailored and in such
a fine selection of new fabrics . .. Thorobred wor-
steds, Gulf-Tone, Dacron and Orlon mixtures,
silken mohair.“ Here yvou will find the suit for
YOU. Z

Aetna dress shirts, Aetna Northcool sportshirts,
and Aetna Miamian sport shirts, all grand shirts
for your every need.

Excello shirts, smooth quality shirts for that

A ji SON : dressed-up appearance, shirts that will set off
( ‘ " your fine Style-Mart suit.

Jayson shirts, sportshirts, pajamas nationally
known for quality and styling.

IAILORIN urements and posture, in quality domestic
‘ and imported woolens, is yours through our

facilities of the International Tailoring

(OMPANY |

Wembley and Superba Ties . . . both these

lines of ties are recognized by the Fashion

Custom tailoring to your individual meas-

Guild of America for high standards of pat- g

terns and styling.

When posed with the problem of gifts for

a man be sure to give one that will truly

be appreciated and that is a gift certificate

« for any of the fine items carried in our store.

For 45 Years P E C K /,S

: 4 /
we have had the privilege of | MEN S WEAR

serving Birmingham with qual-
ity clothing and tailoring. | 108 S. Woodward
MI 4.7724

SUPERBA

CONGRATULATIONS to the BIRMINGHAM ECCENTRIC




Church Is Booth Memorial

Just driving past Christ C
persons a deeper meaning of
House”.

hurch Cranbrook gives many
the often-used phrase, “God’s

One of the most impressive churches in the area, Christ
Church stands today as a constant reminder of the two who
made it possible—Mr. and Mrs. George Booth. The church,
as it is known by thousands today had a modest and humble

beginning, when in 1918 Mr.

Booth erected the “Meeting

House”, now a part of Brookside school.

Even this, however, was not the4——

true starting point. When George
Booth and his wife, Ellen Scripps
Booth, came to Bloomfield Hills in
the summer of 1905 he saw the
need for a religious center, easily
reached by those living in what
was then a remote area.

He provided a large tent which
was placed on the hill to the north
of Lone Pine road and opposite the
present church. Here his father,
Henry Wood Booth, taught classes
and conducted services for a sum-
mer or two.

Service and classes sometimes
were held at Cranbrook cottage,
Henry Wood Booth’s residence, or
in what had been the original gar-
age adjoining Cranbrook House.
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IT WAS IN 1918 that George
Booth wrote to his father making
known his wish to have the church
message reach the “non-church-go-
ing people of this district”.

It was at this time that the
“Meeting House” was built on
Cranbrook road. The building
served a dual purpose, for church
services were held there Sunday
afternoon, attended often by the
same persons who had seen the
;_novie program there the night be-
ore.

The elder Mr. Booth continued to
lead or arrange services in the
“Meeting House” until his death
on March 17, 1925.

Attendance at Sunday school in-
creased under the direction of
Geraldine Chrome Tretton, and with
the newly organized Children’s
school, more space was needed.
The Meeting House was expanded.
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BY 1923, to furnish additional
facilities, Mr. and Mrs. Booth’s
dream of providing the community

|with a church and boys’ school be-
gan to take shape.

| They enlisted the aid of the Rev.|

| Samuel 8. Marquis, D.D., who had
preached at the Meeting House on
geveral ocecasions. Mr. Booth also
confided his hopes in the Rt. Rev.
Herman Page, bishop of the Michi-
gan diocese.

In November 1924, Dr. Marquis
accepted the bishop’s appointment
as minister-in-charge of the as yet
unorganized Episcopal mission. He
continued as spiritual leader of
both the church and school until
his retirement in 1939.

In the erection and furnishing
of the church, Mr. Booth made
many sketches which American
and English craftsmen developed
into objects of use and adornment.
With Mrs. Booth’s aid, he enriched
the church with several antiquities
which were purchased for particu-
lar places in the building.
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GROUND WAS BROKEN for
‘the building on July 5, 1925, but
not without some difficulty. The
sun-baked hillside resisted all ef-
forts of the spade to more than
seratch its surface and Mr. Booth
had to put in a few minutes of
work with a pick axe before tha
first earth could be turned.

While the building grew, mem-
bers of the parish busied them-
selves locating churchly articles of
sufficient beauty to grace the new
edifice. Others were having modern
craftsmen duplicate old and lovely
church fixtures. Thus it was that
many of the beautiful church fur-
nishings were acquired and given
in memory of loved ones.

The great fresco in the sanctuary
was painted by the same Katherine
McEwen who had painted the Wise
Men on the wall of the Meeting

House 10 years before. Her under-
taking for the church took three
years to complete.
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EASTER SUNDAY, 1926,
marked the first service of the new
building when the Chapel of St.
Dunstan was crowded with wor-
shippers. Deep mud on the roads
and a plank walk from the road-
side to the chapel door did not
deter those who came to worship
in the new church.

The church proper was used on
Christmas Eve the following year
when special midnight services
were held.

Bishop Page consecrated the
buildings on Sept. 29, 1928 with Dr.
Marquis and the Rev. Warner For-
syth of St. James church assisting.

Time proved the early worries of
the rector to be groundless, when
in the days of the Meeting House
he had wondered where there were
enough people to form an active
congregation. Like the smaller
place of worship, Christ Church
Cranbrook had no lack of commu-
nicants.
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THE CONGREGATION and stu-
dent body of the church school
grew rapidly and before long,
younger children were holding
their classes in Brookside school,
the church being overcrowded.

To accommodate this increase, a
church school was built a shorty
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IMPRESSIVE ENTRANCE TO CRIST CHURCH

Has served Hills area since Easter Sunday, 1926

time later, serving also as a chapel
for Kingswood and Cranbrook
schools.

Althéough a part of the diocese of
Michigan, Christ Church Cran-
brook does not limit its activities
to those of the Episcopal faith
alone. It was established to meet
the spiritual needs of all residents
of the community who cared to
participate, and has always ful-
filled that obligation.
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ITS FACILITIES always are
available for civic and educational
groups and is well known to many
throughout Oakland county as the
more or less “official” headquar-
ters for all large meetings of the
Red Cross chapter.

Many other groups have been
welcomed there which were not

meeting' for what could be called a
“churchly” purpose.

In 1933, as another community
service, the church opened a li-
brary. Books, periodicals and a
special. section of books on gar-
dening were available at the out-
set.

In spite of the impressive beauty
of the entire building, perhaps one
of the most outstanding features
of Christ Church, and most widely
known, is its huge 62-bell carillon
which ranges over four complete
chromatic octaves.
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THE BELLS were made by the
Taylor Bell Foundry of Loughbor-
ough, England, and were dedicated
on Sept. 30, 1928 by Anton Brees,
bellmaster of the noted Bok Sing-
ing Tower in Florida.

Methodist church.

When the first congregation began gathering for services

in the barn of Deacon Elijah

Fish (now the Benedict farm

on North Woodward), Birmingham was little more than an
outpost. Only nine members regularly attended the services
at the maple grove on what was then called Pontiac Road,

and they faced travel hazards

undreamed of today.

Fa
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After a year of worship at this
site, meetings shifted to the Davis
Hotel in the village. This later was
to be known as the National Hotel
and long one of the social gather-
ing places of the rapidly growing
little community.

At its founding the group was
known as the Presbyterian Society
of Bloomfield, but in 1850 the name
was changed to that of the Presby-
terian Society of Birmingham.

Following a period of worship in
the hotel, the group moved to the
old wooden school at the corner
of Mill (West Maple) and Chester
streets. Meetings were held there
until May, 1843, when the Presby-
terians rented the Methodist church
and held afternoon services there.
Rental fees were $100 a year.
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IN THE summer of 1844, during
the second year of the Rev. E. H.
Fairchild’s pastorate, the group
built and dedicated its first formal
church home. John W. Hunter
donated the land, a part of the
holdings he had obtained from the
government. The building was near
what is now known as Maple and
Woodward, standing at the south-

east corner.

Although church records make no
definite statement, it may be as-
sumed that the building was out-
grown when, in 1860 it was sold at
auction to one Henry J. Blumberg
for $156 and taken to a lot on the
west side of Woodward and just
north of Maple. Blumberg made
the building available for political
meetings.
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WORK ON the new church, on
the south side of E, Maple, midway
between Woodward and Hunter,
was started in December of that
year. The entire cost of the church,
including furnishings, was $2,500.
It was dedicated, free of debt.

To defray construction costs, the
52 pews were divided, with 42 ap-
portioned for pewholders and 10
remaining ‘“free pews”. The paid
pews were- valued at from $30 to
$65 each and were “sold” at public
auction.

Furnishings of the church were
obtained through the combined ef-
forts of the ladies of the congre-
gation, o

During this time the church was

e

Since then, the many tons of
metal have been played by some
of the world’s outstanding caril-
lonneurs and' are heard regularly
during special vesper services.

Music plays a large part in the
life of the church. The Adult Choir
numbers 58 voices, Blue Choir, 503
Red Choir of 32 young children;
Senior Choir and a music library
of some 400 sets of services and
anthems.
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THE CHURCH has many groups
whose combined activities not only
are felt in the parish but extend
far beyond its borders. These in-
clude the Woman’s Auxiliary, Altar
Guild, St. Andrew’s Guild, Marquis
club, Men’s club and a Fellowship
program.
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ABOVE: NEW PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH NOW UNDER CONSTRUCTION

Left: N. Woodward site has served congregation for 35 years

Presbyterians’ 1st Meetings Held in Barn
From the standpoint of continuous service, the First Pres-

‘byterian is Birmingham’s second oldest church, having been
organized in 1834, seven years after the founding of the

served by the Rev. S. N. Hill, who
in addition to his clerical duties,
organized” and taught a “Select
School”. The present Hill school,
erected in 1969, was named in his
honor. 7 7

 d

NOT SATISFIED with conduct-
ing a school and serving a church,
Mr. Hill was active in Community
affairs. In March, 1864, three
months after Birmingham was in-
corporated as a village, he was ap-
pointed clerk.

This church group, like others in
Birmingham, concerned itself wide-
ly in the betterment of others. To
further this, the Women’s Foreign
Missionary society was formed in
1874 and by 1882, boasted a mem-
bership of 30 ladies. Dues of 50

cents a year went to help maintain|

missionaries abroad.

Various. affairs sponsored by the
society raised sufficient funds to
set up a scholarship to support a
deserving -student in the mission
fields of Persia.
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THE CHURCH also was helped
greatly by its Ladies’ Literary club
and the Ladies’ Church society.
From them came many gifts of
furnishings, including 100 hymnals
in 1899.

With all its many activities, it
is only nagural that the church
should once more grow out of its
home. During the service of the
Rev. W. C. McKnight, a committee
headed by Henry Bassett began
plans for a larger building.

Wholeheartedly the congregation
faced this new challenge, approved

the plans and on June 17, 1917,

the cornerstone for
building was laid.

The building, dedicated on ‘Sept.
8, 1918, has several memorial win-
dows, placed there by friends and
families of members who had.serv-
ed the church long and well.
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AMONG THOSE-so honored -are
Belle Ward Jackson, Miss Susan
Trowbridge, Mr. McKnight, Stephen
V. R. Trowbridge, Guy Maxwell
Trowbridge, Andrew C. Wallace,
Eliza Wallace, Albert C. Adams,
Silvin D. Simonson, Marjorie Si-
monson, and two foreign mission-
ers, Tillman C. Trowbridge (An-
tab, Turkey, 1857-1888) and James
Quick, (Ceylon, India, 1862-1872.)

In 1936 the Presbyterian church,
in an effort to provide a greater
service to some members of its
congregation, jinstalled a number
of individually controlled hearing
aids, so those who were unable to
hear clearly could regularly meet
with their fellows and enjoy the
sanctity of God’s word.

Service—both to its members and
its community—has been the key-
note of the church since its or-
ganization.
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THROUGH THE years its many
organizations have worked closely
with community groups for the bet-
terment of all. The church has had
active organizations for men and
women, ‘boys and girls.

Among its many programs has
been the active sponsorship of Boy
Scout Troop B-1, which it has in-
spired and watched over through
the years.

the present

THE PRESENT pastor, the Rev.
W. Glen Harris, came to Birming-
ham in 1938 and in 1941 received
his Ph.D. degree from the Univer=
sity of Pennsylvania.

Since coming to Birmingham,
from Trenton, N. J., he has traveled
widely in connection with his work
in the church,
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IN 1948 he was seleeted as one
of the group from the United
States to attend the World Council
of Churches at Amsterdam. While
on this trip he visited Scotland,
England, Italy, France, Belgium,
Norway, Sweden, Denmark, Switz-
erland and Holland, gathering in«
formation of post-war conditions
in these countries. !

Now, once more the congrega-
tion and Sunday School of over
3,000 persons, has become too large
for the present building.
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REALIZING THE need for a
bigger church home, plans for it
were begun before the end of World
War II. Committees studied every
possible means of providing a beau-
tiful building for the future of the
church,

On May 11, 1952, Mother’s Day,
ground was broken in a simple but
impressive ceremony on the new
church site at West Maple and “
Pleasant.

Although construction has start-
ed, no definite date has been es-
tablished for occupying the first
unit of the new million dollar
structure. It is hoped, however,
that It may be ready for use late
this year or early 1954. ‘



our best wishes to

The Birmingham Eccentric

ON THE OCCASION OF ITS 75TH ANNIVERSARY

Bingham & Bingham

CARSON BINGHAM

INSURANCE

310 WABEEK BUILDING, BIRMINGHAM
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Phone Midwest 4-7300

SERVICE BUILT OUR BUSINESS — SINCE 1921
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The BIRMINGHAM ECCENTRIC was already a year old
when, in 1879, electric lights were introduced as a circus oddity
that outshone the elephant herd.

So, as it begins its second 75 years, The ECCENTRIC has
had the opportunity to report much of the Age of Steam; all that
is known so far of the Age of Electricity.

It has been a period of sweeping changes. And in the best
journalistic tradition, The ECCENTRIC’s first concern has been
to serve Birmingham well . . . showing a lively interest in com-
munity affairs . .. often suggesting courses of action to meet the
problems which arose with the changing times in its home town.

So our salute goes to The
BIRMINGHAM ECCGENTRIC
on its Diamond Anniversary!

4 | Years Ago

........ fhe Changlng “mes

Wonder how much type was pied in The ECCEN-
TRIC’s composing room on dark, wintry after-

4 ‘noons under the dim gaslights?

Take 1908—only 45 years ago. ALL Birmingham’s
public lighting then consisted of about 44 16-
candlepower bulbs, totaling less in light output
than five of today’s 100W bulbs.

Most of this lighting was for the Village library
—and the jail.

®
Birmingham’s first electric franchise with a direct
predecessor of our company put a “ceiling” on

electric rates of 16¢ per unit! Today’s equivalent
price is about 3c.

Detroit Edison

The Detroit Edison Company




St. James Church’s History |

-

Has a Number of ‘Firsts’

St. James Episcopal church, founded in Birmingham in

1894, had few of the feelings

and struggles to get started

that other churches of those early days experienced.
First formal meeting was held in Library Hall on a Sun-
day afternoon in April. Just two weeks later, April 12, 1894,

a congregation was formed at

the home of E. G. Stevenson

and the church’s life was under way.

Early meetings were in the First ¢——

Baptist church with morning serv-|
ices and Sunday school. It was the
first church in Birmingham to
schedule regular services.

A month after the group’s form-

ation, the name was selected, and
it was announced that a new brick
church would be built shortly.
. Work was started that year when
Frank Pearsall hauled the first
stone to be used in the building.
Pearsall donated a great deal of
his time after that Dec. 13 hauling
job, and aided materially in the
construction of the edifice.

At the outset, the vestrymen de-
clared they wanted a church the
village would not be ashamed of
and when in March, 1894, the com-
pleted building was ready for oc-
cupancy, they felt they had at-
tained their goal.
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ST. JAMES church, at that time,
was perhaps the most costly church
in town, having been constructed
for $5,000.

The first rector, the Rev. Mr.
Carey, took over his duties in 1896,
bringing his family to Birmingham.

Soon after his arrival the first
confirmation class, numbering 17,
was held, with a Bishop Davies of-
ficiating.

St. James not only fitted itself
into the community and its religi-
ous life, but often took over the
position of leader.

An example of this is the first
appearance of a vested choir in
Birmingham when, in 1897, the
community buzzed with stories of
the St. James choir. The success
of the group was made -certain

when it was revealed that one boy
was walking more than five miles
to attend rehearsals.
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THIS EPISCOPAL group start-
ed the program of evening services
for the community, hold its first in
January, 1898. Popularity of these
services was increased even more
when Mrs. Charles Stinchfield fin-
anced the installation of acetylene
lights in the church.

Another first for St. James came
in 1910 when it announced the Tre
Ore services for Good Friday. It
followed by planning a. special
Christmas Eve service that year
and four years later introduced the
program of weekday Lenten serv-
ices.

The quick acceptance of St.
James church becomes even more
unusual when one considers that
Episcopal meetings were held in
Birmingham prior to the Civil War
but without any effort toward the
establishment of a permanent
parish.
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ONE OF THE men most active
in Episcopal affairs throughout the
state was C. C. Trowbridge, mayor
of Detroit and secretary to Gen-
eral Cass.

The grandfather of Mrs. George
T. Hendrie of 359 Willits, Trow-
bridge was one who was responsible
for many of the early meetings
held here prior to the formation of
the congregation.

This church always has occupied
the site on which it now stands—
the southeast corner of W. Maple
and Chester streets. The property

was purchased for $600 and at the
ground breaking the first shovel of
earth was turned by William
Walker.

Little detailed history of the
church is available, such as early
improvements to the property and
enlargements of church holdings.

k4 b & 7

THERE ALWAYS has been evi-
dence of its growth and interest in
community, life, however.

During the pastorate of the Rev.
David Thornberry in 1906-7, he
served not only the local church
but a mission in Royal Oak where
meetings were held in a school
buildiffg. This, today, is St. John’s
church at the corner of 11 Mile and
Woodward.

Mr. Thornberry, after 47 years
in the Episcopal ministry, is now
making his home at 488 Southfield
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'CHURCH STILL IS USING ORIGINAL SITE
But physical appearance rapidly being changed

of St. James as assistant to the
Rev. Harold E. Towne, rector.

Two other missions, St. James at
Berkley and St. Anne’s at Oakley
Park, are currently sponsored by
the local church.
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AMONG ITS other community
interests and lasting impressions
was the part it took in the founda-
tion of thé Birmingham Commu-
nity House.

When plans for this service first
were being discussed in 1920, the
Rev. Charles H. McCurdy made a
survey among his parishioners and
found only a small percentage of
the women were active in church
affairs.

He declared that some activity
should be provided for the women
of the community which would be
of benefit to all, and gave gener-
ously of his time in the early life
of the House.

St. James, too, had a part in the
establishment of Cranbrook. Mr.
George Booth, who founded Christ
Church Cranbrook, was serving St.
James as senior warden at the

and is active again in the affairs+4

time and received the help of fel-
low churchmen in his plans.
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IN 1947, a member of the church
anonymously gave $4,000 to the
City of Birmingham for the devel-
opment of what then was known
as “Grant Park”. Because of his
church affiliation, he asked that
the name of the church, rather
than his own, be given to the park.

Probably one of the most widely
known affairs of St. James church
beyond its religious life is the an-
nual pet parade held each spring.

One of the big events for Bir-
mingham youngsters, it calls forth
hundreds of boys and girls and
their pets each year, treating
townspeople to a Mardi Gras all
their own. + ¢

SHORTLY AFTER the end of
the war the church began to realize
its hopes of expansion.

In 1949, ground was broken for
the. $150,000 addition which in-

cluded a mew kitchen and choir’

rooms, additional space for group
meetings and increased area for
the nave.

At the groundbreaking ceremony
stone ceremony, June 23, the Rt.
Rev. Russell Hubbard, suffragan
bishop of the Episcopal Diocese of
Michigan, officiated. At the corner-
on April 29 of that year, the Rt.
Rev. Richard S, Emrich was the
honored guest.

The addition was completed and
ready for use in December, 1949,
when a special dedication cere-
mony was held.

Currently the church is conduct-
ing another expansion program,
estimated at $180,000.
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THIS WILL MEAN the removal
of the frame house which has serv-,
ed as church house and Sunday
school room for many years, and
an entirely new front for the pres-
ent building.

When completed, the nave will
seat 500 persons and will provide
room for a side altar.

Reaping the harvest of its ear-
lier campaign, the church will hold
temporary services at the Commu-
nity House during the church re-
modeling.

More Than Century of History Behind Southfield Church

Over a century ago, missionaries of the Associated Pres-

byterian church of North Am

erica ministered to the relig-

ious needs of the scattered residents of the Southfield area.
Earliest records show that two brothers, the Revs. John

and James Law, were the first

to serve in the area.

Early in 1849 the Rev. F. A.¢
Hutchinson and the Rev. Mr. Lee
were in the field, joined later in
the year by the Rev. Mr. Brownlee.

These three petitioned the board
+ of home missions for the organiza-
tion of a congregation in South-
field township and paved the way

for the establishment of a regular
program of worship.

In April 1850, at the first meet-
ing, 17 charter members were en-
rolled and from their number se-
lected Daniel Parks and Matthew
Erwin, Sr., as the ruling elders.

It is interesting to note that some
of the descendants of these early
members still are living in the area
and active in the church affairs.
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SOON AFTER the organization,
the Revs. James M. Smeallie and
David Dinsmore were sent to serve
this and other congregations in the
area. In the spring of 1851 South-
field extended a call to Mr. Smeal-
lie to become the regular pastor.
He accepted and on the first
Wednesday in September, 1852, was

SOUTHFIELD CHURC

H ERECTED IN 1862
On W. 10 Mile east of Lahser road :

4ordained and installed.

At this time, the Southfield con-
gregation and others of Michigan
separated from the Richland
(Ohio) Presbytery and were or-
ganized as a Detroit Presbytery.

Six years later the Associate
Presbytery and the Associate Re-
formed Presbyterian combined to
form the United Presbyterian
church. The Southfield congrega-
tion and Detroit Presbytery_became
a part of this group.
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MR. SMEALLIE served South-

. field and Troy (now Royal Oak),

parishes. His residence was in
Troy since the Southfield church
did not at that time own a par-
sonage.

In those days the pastor was not
only faced with the task of serving
a sprawling parish, he also had to
cope with unfavorable and un-
pleasant travel conditions.

In the Southfield area, the early
roads were not among the least
of the pastor’s trouble. Natural
draining was very bad and surface
water of winter and spring months
left the roads in a semi-inundated
condition.

Tree stumps stuck up above the
surface of the ground and roads
were little more than trails wind-
ing in and out among them. Over
these roads Mr. Smeallie traveled
by horseback, serving both congre-
gations as best he could.
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THE FIRST recorded infant
baptism to be performed by Mr.
Smeallie during his pastorate was
one Robert John Parks, in 1851,

Mr. Smeallie left the church in
1860 after seven years there, to
accept a call to Kortright, Del. He
was followed by the Rev. William
Robertson in 1861, the church hav-
ing been vacant for a year.

It was during Mr. Robertson’s
service to the parish that the pres-
ent church was built.

The building committee com-
posed of Alexander MecClelland,
Alexander Gregg, William Beatty
and Matthew Erwin with the fin-
ance committee of John and James
Erwin, Ezekiel Hutton, John Mec-
Clelland, John Muldragh and
Adams Reid secured subscriptions
amounting to $1,450 and the con-
gregation voted to start work.

A CONTRACT was awarded to
William. Bailey and Son and in
early winter, 1862, work was be-
gun. The estimated contract was
$1,5680. =

During the construction period
the church, which had been pur-
chased from the Southfield Presby-
terian church and moved to the
site, was once more due for travel.
It was taken from the site which
had been given to the church by
Mr. Hutton, the northwest corner
of his farm, to the farm of a Mr.
Sturman,

All went well for the newly in-
spired group and in 1893, when a-
new congregation was formed in
Birmingham, the Rev. A. H. Orr,
then serving Southfield, left to be-
come pastor of the new parish.
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HE ADDED the Troy area to his
duties, and since that time the
Southfield United Presbyterian
church has maintained its own par-
ish and supported its own pastor.

Two years after this the first
parsonage was acquired at 10%
Mile road. The Rev. S. V. Kyle was
the first pastor to occupy the home
which remained in use until 1949
when it was sold and a new build-
ing erected beside the church.

In 1912 great strides were taken
toward modernizing the church
building. A basement was dug un-
der it and a central heating system
installed.

As the congregation increased, a
Bible school wing was added, dedi-
cated and free of debt in 1944.
This, equal in floor space to the
original building, has two floors
and a basement. It is still in use.
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THE CHURCH has several wom-
en’s organizations, the Missionary
society having been formed in
1892. Its first president was Miss
Mary Jane Erwin.

Today, the 85-year-old building
no longer is able to care for the
number of persons who are using
it. Early this year under the guid-
ance of the pastor, the Rev. Harvey
M. Luce, plans were launched for
the erection of a new $100,000 edu-
cational building, adjacent to the
old building.

New Catholic Parish Formed

First formal announcement of the newest Catholic parish

in Birmingham was made on Oct. 18, 1951.

At that time Edward Cardinal Mooney, Archbishop of De-
troit, said the new parish, to be known as Our Lady Queen
of Martyrs, had been established to serve the South Bir-
The Rev. Lucian A. Hebert

mingham-Beverly Hills area.
was placed in charge.

Boundaries were established with¢—————

Lincoln avenue to the north, Wood-
ward on the east, Normandy to the
south and Cranbrook to the West.
The site of parish buildings is
on Pierce street between Birwood
and Locherbie.

For a time members of the par-
ish held services in the chapel of
the Little Flower high school on
North  Woodward. Construction
was scheduled for the following’
. year. 4 . ;

Bishop
ficiated at the cornerstone ceremon-
ies for the first unit on Sunday,
July 6, 1952,
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THIS FIRST structure on the
two and a half acre site will serve
only temporarily as a church and
chapel. Its ultimate use will be as
an auditorium._ and = gymnasium.
Plans also include a church build-
ing and parochial school, the lat-

Alexander Zableski of-

year. :

Work on the new building unit
progressed rapidly and on Christ-
mas Eve, 1952, the first services
were held in the new church.

The newly organized Altar so-
ciety began its work program al-
most as soon as building construe-
tion started. When the first serv-
ice was held, all altar clothes, vest-
ments and church linens were ready
for use. .

Mrs. Eugene Kind, chairman of
the group, said thousands of hours
and millions of stitches went into

ter to be 1'éady for occupancy at
the beginning of the 1954 school e

y

FIRST UNIT OF OUR LADY’S TOTAL PLAN

Ultimate church, school buildings planned for 1954

tiful robes.
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IN - THIS FIRST solemn high
'mass, the .pastor was assisted by

the intricate designs of the beau-4

the Revs. Albert Allen and John | prospered.

Several guilds have

J. Reardon as deacon and sub dea-|grown from the Altar society and

con.

with the Men’s club are active in

Since its inception the parish has|church and. parish. affairs.



TIME TO THINK . ..

Anniversary celebrations serve many purposes. One of the
most important .. . one of the most significant, to our way
of thinking, is that they literally make us stop whatever
we may be concerned with in the rush of daily routine
and take TIME TO THINK! Certainly a 75th anniversary
brings to mind the early struggles and the “blood-sweat-
and-tears” involved in attaining that enviable age. The
RB SHOPS, now 25 Years old and located in Birmingiwm
for '20‘.years, can join wi}h you of The ECCENTRIC and
pause long enough to properly assess the many factors
taken for granted in this great land of ours which permit-
such progress and growth. Almost enough reward in itself

for the past years of toil, isn't it?

Fashion Leaders For 25 Years

SHOPS |

, Smast Femenine @1/:4&41
142 W. Maple — Birmingham

Branches in Royal Oak — Ferndale — Mt. Clemens
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HAS SERVED :FRANKLIN VILLAGE SINCE 1860
And cost only $210 to build

Church Life Began
In Franklin in 1831

Although today Franklin is served by an interdenomina-
tional church, its original place of worship was associated
with the Presbyterian faith.

Started more than a century ago and only three years after
the small community was named ‘“Franklin”, the first church
was organized in a log house on the Sly farm near Wing Lake.
The church was formed on June 1, 1831, by the Rev. Hornell

Kirk Built Upon Col. Geo

In an area noted for its beautiful
churches, Kirk in the Hills Pres-
byterian is rapidly becoming known
as one of the most beautiful.

The church and its 30-acre tract
of land in Bloomfield township were
given to the community and the
Detroit Presbytery by Col. Edwin
S. George, noted philanthropist, in-
dustrialist and world traveler.

Accepted and dedicated by the
Presbytery in the fall of 1947, the
long range program of building
got under way almost at once.

The entire holdings on West
Long Lake road consist of Col.
George’s palatial home, known as
Cedarholm, and three residences
for staff members. /

In Cedarholm is the lovely ¢hapel

in which Sunday School services4

are held and additional rooms used
by the school and other church
organizations.
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CONSTRUCTION of the new
church has been under way con-
tinuously since its inception in
1948. The cloisters, a portion of

the Tower of the Apostles and the |

first floor of the church have been
completed.

Easter Sunday, 1952, saw the
first service in the new George
Chapel, first floor of the beautiful
Gothic building. This room provides
seating accommodations for 500
people.

In the Tower of the Apostles are
12 carved stone statues of the
Twelve Disciples, approached by a
cantilever stairway. Here, too, are
found the symbols of the early
Christian churches.

One of the most impressive fea-
tures of the entire church edifice
is the tower and cloister where 31
stained glass medallions pay silent
tribute to men and women who

’$3.000,000 WILL BE SPENT ON EDIFICE
Building program to continue 2 or 3 years more

N . i

“”“".“Ww«@.ry

Gift

r

|alities, are Gandhi, Booker T,
| Washington, Maimonides, famed
Jewish philosopher and John Mon-
teith, founder of the University of
Michigan. Four women also are
in the group.

At the Kirk’s inception, the Rev.
Leslie A. Bechtel, D.D., executive
secretary of the Presbytery was
| appointed pastor at the Kirk. Un-
der his guidance the physical con-
struction of the church has con-
tinued and, keeping pace with this,
the congregation has flourished.

In November, 1947, eight weeks
after the first service was held,
the church membership was 58. By
the following Easter the member-
ship had nearly doubled and a Sun-
day School of like size was in
operation.
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TWO YOUTH choirs had been
developed, several organizations
started and the church has taken
its place in the community. The
church, as far as the Presbyterian
church extension board was con-

assisted by one Eliza Bull.

For several years pastors came¥

from Pontiac to conduct services
but in 1846 a corporate body was
organized. Deacon Bull was at this
time elected agent of the church
and given full power to transact
any and all business pertaining to
the erection of a suitable place of
worship.

The church was built in 1848 on
the west side of the road north of
Franklin and near the Pickering
tool house. Deacon Bull was the
driving power of the church in all
its activities and served as clerk
from 1831 to 1870.
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EVENTUALLY this church was
discontinued and many of its mem-
bers affiliated with the Methodist
Protestant church (or class) of
Franklin which had been organized
in 1840.

In this group Laban Smith was
the acknowledged superintendent
(sometimes called “pastor”). Har-
ry Brownson was elected leader
with Jonas S. Pratt as steward.

These, with Nancy Smith, Da-
vid Parkhurst, Abigail Pratt and
Mary Brownson attended the quar-
terly conferences on Sept. 26, 1840,
when the organization of the
Franklin Circuit was affected. La-
ban Smith and Oliver Earle became
the acknowledged pastors.
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ON JUNE 12, 1841, the fourth
quarterly conference was held in
Franklin. The meeting was high-
lighted by the several resolutions
passed by the assembly, denounc-
ing the practice and evil influence
of slavery in the United States.

From 1842-58 little of unusual
interest took place in the life of
the church other than the fact that
Redford joined the Franklin Cir-
cuit. However, in 1858. a number
of people began to seek the erec-
tion of a proper place of worship.

The church was completed in
1860 but not formally dedicated un-
til June, 1863, when Thomas Plack-
et presided over the dedicatory
service.
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AT THIS TIME one A. C. Fuller
became active on the circuit and
held a series of protracted meet-
ings in the several churches.
Franklin had many conversions
and added many new members to
jits rolls. ;

A warranty deed dated July 14,
1859 and recorded Sept. 1, 1859,
shows that the site of the present
church for $50 was deeded by Wil-
liam C. Kyle and Emilv. his wife,
to Stenhen Durkee, William Hall,
J. R. Bigelow, Jonathan Worthine
and James VanEvery, trustees of
the Methodist Protestant church
of Franklin.

On Dec. 31, 1868, William and
Ruth Hall deeded the propertv on
the south side to James J. Trott
and to grant access to it, they
deeded an additional two rods on
the east of the church property
stipulatine it was to be used only
for highway purposes.
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THE CHURCH construction cost |
$210. with the horse sheds added
abcut 20 years later at a cost of

$169.02. Horses finally were re-
placed by the automobile and in
1920 these sheds were torn down
and used mainly for firewood. The
Rev. Ira Carley salvaged enough
material to build a garage which
still serves the parsonage.

The church-goer of early days
had his choice of three entrances.
He could go through the center
door or either of two side entranc-
es. These led past the big round
stoves where the worshipper could
pause to warm his hands and feet.

Pipes standing about two-thirds
of the length of the church, on
either side, furnished the heat and,
needlees to say, most of the con-
gregation “sat on the sidelines.”
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CHURCH FURNISHINGS, the
pastor’s salary, repairs and most
other items of church life which
required a cash outlay, came about
through efforts of the church wom-
en. Chicken pie suppers served at
25 cents each, or less if this price
was more than one could afford.
supplied a large percentage of
church funds.

Donations of vegetables, meat, |
firewood and foodstuffs also were
accepted as payment for these sup-
pers and often were a part of the
pastor’s salary.

0Old church records show that the
Franklin church was the first in
Michigan’s Methodist Protestant
group to form a missionary society.
This group remained very active
until after the turn of the century
and at one time supported a mis-
sioner in the field.
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THE LADIES AID, formed in |
1908, now operates under the name |
of the Womens Society of Christian |
Service. Three divisions have be-
come necessary because of its
growth.

Other groups include the Youth
Fellowship, started in 1895 as a
unit of the Christian Endeavor so-
ciety, which remained very active
until 1905. Most recent church or-
ganization is the adult discussion
group, formed within the last 10
years.

The Franklin church was closed
in 1916 to be reopened two yvears
later under the nastorate of the
Rev. Edward Dunlavy as a unit of
the Methodist Episcopal church.
Two of his daughters. Mrs. James
Bowden and Mrs. H. T. McCreedy,
still live in Franklin.
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UNDER THE direction of the
present pastor, the Rev. William
Lovejoy, the church has continued
to grow and prosper. Evidence of
this is in the newly constructed
Sunday school and social wing of
the church and the modernization
of the old building in 1950.

While Franklin is fondly ve-|
ferred to as the community which |
time forgot, it cannot be said that |
time has ignored its church. [

Through more than 100 years,
the little church has stood stead-
fast, marking the changes which
time has wrought on the commu-
nity and its people.

7

cerned, was fully established and a
self-supporting organization.
Today the Kirk has a member-

have made outstanding contribu-
tions to the world.

¥ b4 i 1
AMONG THE group, which rep- | ship of more than 600, with 450 in

resents many religions and nation-

ments. Men’s and women’s groups
are fully organized and present a
variety of programs for the church
and community. ]

In mid-summer, 1952, the women
of the church sponsored an outdoor
art exhibit which brought entries
from every state in the union and
attracted over 5,000 visitors. This
is but one example of the com-
munity interest which is a part of
the Kirk’s life. .
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DR. BECHTEL expects that at
least two years, and possibly three,
will pass before the entire building
program is completed at a cost
more than $3,000,000.

On Jan. 25, 1951, the church
membership was saddened by the
death of the donor, Col. George,
who passed away at Delray Beach,
Fla.

Services were held at the Kirk,
and the colonel is buried in the
narthex of the new building. A
suitable memorial tablet will be
placed there upon the completion
of the building, visible tribute to
the man who made possible such a
lasting and beautiful service to his

i v

the various church school depart-!community and his God.

Redeemer Lutheran Founded

As Result of 1924 Survey

The work of the Lutheran Church in Birmingham dates|
back to the fall of 1924 when, as a result of a survey conducted |
by the Detroit Pastoral Conference, the area was considered
a likely one for the establishment of a Lutheran church.

In September of that year, the Rev. L. A. Schuessler was
called to establish and organize a congregation. No services
were held for three months, but an intensive canvass was
conducted to investigate the possibilities.

Although the canvass revealed4——
Birmingham to be not a predom-,l aders of the eroup began
inantly Lutheran field, a numl:ger} eaders of the g Dr Beh
of families declared themselves in-
terested in the project and a de-
cision to begin active work was |
made.

The 6l%-acre site on West Maple
road was purchased in 1941 at a
lcost of $5,500. The decision
| build in colonial style was reached
after months of careful
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THE FIRST LUTHERAN serv-
ice was conducted in Johnston-Shaw | ™
hall on November 28, 1924. The ¢
congregation. organized April 4, |
1925, was affiliated with the Luth- |
eran Church-Missouri Synod. |

ted June 19, 1942.

STORY
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THE OF the church

|
con- |
sidering a new church. |

The Bible study program of the
youth group is directed by Mr. and
Mrs. Henry Gassaway. Other youth
programs are led by Mr. and Murs.
Roy Brown and Mr. and Mrs.
George Shave.

The ladies organization is active
in the mission field and in support-
ing the overall program of the
church. Mrs. Harold Storch is
present chairman of the group.
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BOARD MEMBERS who super-

vise and direct the work of the

Lo | chureh include Richard Oberschulte,

president; Martin Otto, vice-presi-

: stu(li‘_v. dent; Edmund Kleinschmit, secre-
Ground was broken August 31, tary; Henry Gassaway, treasurer;
1941, and the new church was dedi- !zmd Havold Meinert, Sunday School
‘ superintendent.

Church elders are Walter Riedel
and Karl Schuster, with Royden

(since then has been one of steady | Lewis, Oliver Airo, John Hartmann

The congregation

and a lot

grew under growth. The parish now includes and Ralph Reilly serving as trus-
[the leadership of Rev. Schuessler | more than 600 communicants, 1,000 | tees.
was purchased at the | baptized members, and 500 in Sun- |

corner of Lincoln and Ann streets
for a chapel which was dedicated
May 10, 1925.

Less than a year later, Rev.

|day school and Bible classes.

| John Barnes, Arthur Brenner,

The church sponsors an active and William Cowgill compose the
youth program and extensive rec- finance board, and Royden Lewis,
reational facilities, including a ball | Lowel Heiserman, Walter Beyer
diamond, playground and —picnic}an(i George Shave make up the

’other parish and, for about six,

lcreased to 120 and a number

Schuessler accepted a call to an- |, .o

| board of ushers.

. v
months, the church was without a
minister.

The Rev. R. E. Scaer took over
the minister’s duties in September,
1926. During his four years’ stay,
a parsonage was constructed at the
corner of Lincoln and Stanley
streets.
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IN THE SUMMER of 1930, the
Rev. Scaer left his pastorate here
to take up work in a parish at
Winston-Salem, N.C. Almost a year
elapsed before another minister was
obtained by the 39 communicant
members.

7

During this interval, a number
of Detroit ministers offered their
services to keep the little group
intact.

The present minister, the Rev.
Theodore Wuggazer, came from
a parish ‘in Cody, Wyo., to become
the permanent minister on April
19,-1931, and has ser%ed continu-
ously for 22 years.

Membership declined during the
depression as a number of-families
moved away from the area. How-
ever, in 1940 the parish had in-
of

COLONIAL STYLE CHURCH BUILT IN 1941
Educational wing was added recently




The Cemeter
 Beautiful

Since

Granite pillared entrance as completed in 1909 1 9 O 6

The resting place of
many of South Oak-
land County’s oldest

families.

Entrance as seen today

Roseland Park
Cemetery

: , Woodward at 12 Mile Road

Family Lots

Mausoleum g 21 e

Niches

=)

all under M ¥t
perpefual e Community Mausoleum at time of erection in 1913.
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Your Home

Is An INVESTMENT'!

A Grouping In Our Studio

We have carpets, wall papers, fabrics, furni-

An Investment In $ $$$$ $
And In Your Future Health and Happiness

ture, lamps, pictures and accessories, and the

experience and knowledge of how to use them

| For sound construction, and greater
resale value, the- finest materials
should be used. Whether your needs
consultation without obligation be crude lumber or finished millwork,
3 such as doors, windows and storm-
| sashes you will find the

Lane Bishop Inc. f BEST and

INTERIOR DESIGNERS
WIDEST

243 E. Maple Birmingham MI 4-4300
| SELECTION of

in the interiors of today and tomorrow.

AT
Serving the West
Side of Birmingham I'Iﬁhm Rs aoncINSU§>LYs gN

* Kk x

WITH ALL PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS

on this occasion
The 7'5th,Anniversary
of The
BIRMINGHAM ECCENTRIC

we WIsh to announce our own

40th ANNIVERSARY

For 40 years we have been supplying Birmingham
with building supplies and aided materially in its phe-
nomenal growth. Birmingham will continue to expand as
more and more people become aware of its scenic and
civic attractions. To provide for this expansion we are
increasing our supplies and stocking the latest building
materials.

MILLS PHARMACY
1740 W. Maple at Chesterﬁeld Phone MI 4-5060 653 S. Eton Road MI 4-6810

Always A Place To Park 3 blocks south of Grand Trunk Station
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ESTABLISHED w1927 |

Business Built

: on
CUSTOMER
SATISFACTION

FRANK ST. GARAGE

BERT JACKSON
593 FRANK ST. MI 4-9503

. SPEClALIZING IN
Motor Rebuilding

Harry Reynolds

former owner of the

Birmingham Cab & Taxi Service Bralis Soivics
1919-1952 Carburetor & Electrical
‘ Service
wishes to take this occasion
' JRNIN USHINGS
| TURNING B :

The 75th ANNIVERSARY ° e -

of The Registered Service Dealer For

Auto-Lite Ignition

BIRMINGHAM ECCENTRIC - Delco Batteries

Walker Oil Filters

to express his appreciation for the many, many years of faithful Holley Carburetors

patronage by the residents of Birmingham, and has found the Raybestos B!‘ake Lining

thirty-three years of service to be a most pleasant experience. Wagner Lockheed Brakes Parts & Fluid
The friendliness of its people has made Birmingham a fine place Ramco Piston Rings

in which to live, that it will continue to be so is his firm conviction. McCord Mufflers

(D Years of Making
GOOD IMPRESSIONS

IS THE RECORD SET BY
The Birmingham Eccentric

We’re Happy to offer our Co.ngratulations
on this ANNIVERSARY

Capitac CoLoRPLATE co.

4240 14th STREET DETROIT e MICHIGAN

e HALFTONES e ZINCS e PROCESS PLATES
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Holy Name Parish Celebratedl
Its First Mass 35 Years Ago

Early in the morning of Sunday, May 12, 1918, groups of headed by Mrs. F. J. Douglas and
people were passing through the still quiet streets of Bir- Mrs. V. M. Pollock, was given the

5 ! : : task of layi k-
mingham, evidently going toward the business area of the},:snt:feaﬁl"s%r?(‘f;yﬂ;gogggger S":f‘f
community. ‘

R ling the early Masses were J. A.
Although Birmingham had for many years been known Rocheleau, J. A. Braun, Frank

as “Piety Hill” and five church spires could be seen, the early }'I}’“-‘-'Huf‘\:qh, 1\VqVillia‘m Vhay and Theo-
risers were heading toward a dance hall and public meeting J(O{.?She r‘”f: i‘;‘]’éi‘;ae A TR
place on the second floor of the old Johnson and Shaw Block 5 :

‘!Thomas J. Griffin, Russell Black-
on South Woodward avenue. ; {mer and Michael Fitzgibbons.
These citizens, some of the early™

o Jhl% bt th % d i Formin’g the first choir were
Catholic families of Birmingham, n July of that year it was de-|James O’Brien, Mrs. Frank Rich-
were on their way to attend the

cided to select a site for the ardson, Mrs. William Haldane,
Btk salebnation of Mass withh e church, school, rectory and convent. |

Active an the early plans were |
Joseph C. Donnelly, Joseph Braun, |
William Vhay and Thomas Lynch. |
After considering other sites, a |
three-hundred foot piece at the |
northwest corner of Harmon and |
Woodland was selected. Bishop Kel- |
ly approved the purchase of the |
property and the title of Holy !
Name for the Birmingham mission. |
Early social activities of thel
parish included dinners and par- |
ties, usually presided over by Mrs. |
Charles Greig. ‘
When Father Maurice Chawke
succeeded to the pastorate of St.‘
Mary’s in Royal Oak, he, in turn,
took up the burden of caring for
the Birmingham mission. ‘
; C s |
MEANWHILE SERVICES con- |
tinued to be held in the Johnson-
Shaw building. The altar was a
simple, collapsible wooden frame‘
which stood unnoticed in a corner |
during the six days of the week |
when the hall was given over to!
a decidedly more secular usage.
On Saturday nights, when “the
last dance was over”, Alex Roche-
leau with his assistants, Bernard |
and Charlton DeLong, arranged

limits of the village.

By the year 1918 a large number
of Catholic families were living in
Birmingham, but had for years
been obliged to travel to St. Mary’s
in Royal Oak.

Catholic youth in the area at-
tended catechism classes every
Wednesday afternoon in the Green-
wood avenue home of Murs. T. J.
Griffin. ;

Therefore, it was an important
milestone for Catholics in the area
when arrangements were made in
1918 for the use of the hall in the
Johnston and Shaw Block for Mass
every Sunday morning.
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THE CELEBRANT OF the first
Mass was- The Rev. John F. Need-
ham, pastor of St. Mary’s, Royal
Qak. In spite of ill health, Rev.
Needham kept up this arduous rou-
tine of traveling to Birmingham
each Sunday, usually by trolley, to
minister to the needs of the first
parishioners.

After the “celebration of Mass
on May 12, the names of all pres-
ent were placed in the record.
Meetings of parishioners were held
throughout the spring and summer
at the home of John P. Glendon,
and Joseph Griffin was appointed
secretary-treasurer.

the chairs and erected the little |
altar. f
To the ladies of the parish,

TEMPORARY CHAPEL

ON W. 14 MILE ROAD

Permanent church now is in the planning stage ‘

Ascension Lutheran |

Serves Southwest Area

Celebrating its first birthday as
an organized church in September,
19562, Ascension Lutheran church
is among Birmingham’s youngest
religious organizations.

Actually, formation of the
church started in 1950 when the
Revs. Victor Holboth and George
Rihkopf were sent to Birmingham
by the English district of the
Lutheran church, Missouri synod,
to make a preliminary survey.

They strongly recommended es-
tablishment of a Lutheran church
to serve the rapidly growing south-
ern section of Birmingham and
Neighboring Beverly Hills area.

The’ Rev. Paul Shippert was
called to begin the task. No build-
ing was available for temporary
services in the West 14 Mile-
Pierce area, and it was decided to
erect a ranch-type house on prop-
erty adjacent to the church site.
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THE CHAPEL was opened for-
mally Sept. 9, 1951. The house, de-
signed especially for the type of
use it was to see, was adequate
for immediate demands. Church
services, Sunday school classes and
general meetings were held in its
one large room.

From the start the church pros-
pered and grew until today its
members are facing another con-
struction period in order to pro-
vide room enough for all its ac-
tivities.

Steps already have been taken
to start construction of a larger
building “of more churchly appear-
ance” at West 14 Mile and Hen-
rietta. It is hoped to have the new
church finished this year.

v X :
CHARTER MEMBERS of the

| from Monroe.

Mrs. F. J. Douglas, Mrs. T. J.
Griffin, Mrs. Braun, Mrs. Garner
Miller, Mrs. Harold Van Dyke, ac-
companied by Mrs. H. H. Corson
and Julius Wenzl.
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WORKING TOWARDS a more
permanent establishment in 1921,
the Rev. William W. Ryan was
named to take up residence in Bir-
mingham and to make plans for
the erection of a church. The home
at the corner of Harmon and
Woodland, now the Alumni House,
was used as parochial residence.

Work was begun on the church
building in November 1921, with
Arthur Des Rosiers as the archi-
tect, and Charles E. Brady in
charge of construction.

On Sunday morning, April 30,
1922, with a solemn High Mass,
the new church was dedicated.

. 3 F L/

“THE NEXT CONCERN of the
pastor was to provide a school. At
this time the parish included
Bloomfield Hills as well as Bir-
mingham and a. large and rapid-
ly growing number of school age
children were in the boundaries.

Plans were drawn for a build-

|ing which would be large enough

for the expected growth of parish
for several years to come and so
arranged on the property that a
future addition could easily be
made when needed.
By the fall of 1928 the construc-
tion was completed with an adja-
cent convent for the teaching staff
finished earlier in the summer.
The Holy Name school, then as
now, has been directed by the nuns
of the Order of Sisters, Servants
of the Immaculate Heart of Mary,
L 4

7 7

WITH THE COMPLETION of
the church, school and convent, by
1928 the parish debt was large.
Further plans were dispelled by

| the stock market crash of 1929 |
| followed by the depression, and di- |
vision of the parish with the for- |

mation of St. Hugo of the Hills.
Arriving at this time to become
second pastor of Holy Name was
the Rev. James W. Cotter during
whose careful and efficient pas-
torate Holy Name continued to
arow
storm.
The growth of the parish neces-
sitated the addition of an assist-

and weather the financial| }

|ant pastor, the Rev. Alex J. Bru-
\nett who, on his death, was sue-
{ceeded by the Rev. Lawrence W.

church include Mr. and Mrs. Earl |
Roberts, Miss Carolyn Roberts, Mr.
and Mrs. Carl Aaron, Mr. and Mrs. |
Harry Perkins, Mr. and Mrs. Ray—i
mond Semancek, Mr. and Mrs. |
Charles Hilgendorf, Mr. and Mrs.
Arthur Folgart.

Mr. and Mrs. Clifford Hunt, Mrs.
J. L. McGuire, Rodney Smith, Clif-
ford Hunt, Jr.,, Mr. and Mrs. Wil-
liam Featham, Mrs. .Warren Dea-
kin, Mr. and Mrs. Lester Roberts
and Mrs. Lucy Geiger.

Among the organizations with-
in the church are the Hannah guild,
Altar guild, Missionary League, |
Accolyte club and its several Bible |
classes. }

The Hannah guild has been ac- |
tive in promoting church affairs in- |
cluding projects for the benefit of |
the Lutheran Institute for theJ
Deaf, Detroit. ‘

|
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THE ALTAR GROUP has sched-
uled study periods to gain a deeper
knowledge of the Lutheran church
and seeks to further beautify the
church services. The missionary
group dedicates its programs to
work at home and abroad.

The Accolyte club is training
young boys of the congregation to
fake a more active part in church |
life and assist the pastor. 1

A daily vacation Bible school is |
held each summer for children of |
all ages. [

Current church officers, who will
help direct the building program
and future growth of the church
are Raymond Semancek, president;
Arthur Folgart, secretary; Lester
Roberts, financial secretary; Mrs.
Harry Perkins, treasurer and
Charles Hilgendorf, trustee.

Hamel.

The Rev. David J. Duncan was
named third pastor of Holy Name
in June 1940. During his adminis-
tration, assisted by the Reverend
Ralph V. Barton, Joseph Kress and
the present assistant, Richard T.
Parish, the church building was en-
larged and beautified, a new rec-
tory home purchased and an Alum-

Ini house provided.

7 ¥ 7

THE HIGHLIGHT of Rev. Dun- |
can’s administration was the cele-
bration of the parish’s twenty-fifth
anniversary and the undertaking
of a $200,000 building program.

A house on Greenwood avenue
was purchased by the parish for an
addition to- the eonvent--and was

We've Had a Little
Inflation Since Then

“Putting on” a church supper
generally is done to raise money.
However, it is somewhat difficult
for a person geared to the present

|day high cost of living to under-

stand how any money could have

|been raised with the prices gen-

erally charged for church suppers
in the “way back when” days.

In 1908, the ladies of the Method-
ist church were giving a supper.
The menu consisted of: warm bis-
cuits and maple syrup, Boston
baked beans, cold meats, pickles,
cakes gnd coffee.

These are appetizing items and
the dinner patron got “all he could
eat” for 15c.

At this particular church supper,
the ladies netted $12. Bad weather
didn’t keep the customers at home.

PARISH CHURCH DEDICATED IN APRIL, 1922
Rev. Williami W. Ryan was first permanent pastor

opened in 1951 at an approximate
cost of $45,000.

The school addition was started
in the spring of 1950 at a cost of
$425,000. The addition included a
large auditorium, eight classrooms,
a music room, library, locker rooms
and showers, an office for the prin-
cipal, check room and the infirmary.
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WHEN OPENED in the fall of
1950, the school housed six hundred
pupils, with ten sisters and five
lay-teachers conducting classes.
Edward Cardinal Mooney formally
dedicated and blessed the new
building in November of that year.

Formation of a choir of twenty-
five mixed voices took place in the
fall of 1949, and is conducted by
Mrs. Joseph Bulone, the former

as at other
the church.

In the fall of 1952, Rev. Duncan,
pastor for 13 years, left Holy Name
because of ill health. Monsignor
Carroll F. Deady, who was and
still is superintendent of the pa-
rochial schools of the Detroit arch-
diocese, was named pastor of Holy
Name.

solemn functions in

7 ¥
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FUTURE PLANS include the
building of a new church at the
corner of Harmon and Woodland,
with construction beginning by the
spring of 1954. The present parish
activities house will be moved from
the site and attached by a breeze-
way to the rectory on Woodland.

Resurfacing of the playground
and the purchase of additional

|
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ORIGINALLY

Birmingham's religious growth
during the present decade was aug-
mented with the establishment in
1950 of the Church of the
Nazarene.

It provides a church home for
persons interested in the program
and teachings of the Methodist Di-
vine, the Rev. John Wesley and
provide a place of worship for
families without other church affil-

| iations.

First meeting was held in July,
1950, with the formal organization
the following Nov. 11. The Rev.
William G. Ardrey was appointed
its first pastor. He is a graduate
of the KEastern Nazarene college
at Woolaston, Mass. ¢

The church building located then
at Woodward and Forest, was pur-
chased by the district home mis-
sion board from a group known as
tha Christian Temple. The trans-
action was made with the under-
standing that the building and its
furnishings would be moved from
the downtown area.
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A SITE was purchased on East
Lincoln for the new location and
for a time trouble dogged the steps
of the new organization.

While the church building itself
was judged rugged enough to un-

OCCUPIED A DOWNTOWN LOCATION
But was moved in Oct., 1951, to its new site

Church Moved to New
Site for Nazarenes

Frances Hendricks. This group  playground equipment is sched«
sings at all high masses as well uled for this spring.
o
1
.

dergo the stress and strain of mov-
ing, city streets were not.

After several delays while city
engineers established a route to
follow, the move finally was made.
A few bad times were experienced
as trees and utility poles along the
winding route had to be removed to
permit passage of the building.

Once at the new location, little
difficulty was experienced in get-
ting the building off the dolly and
outo the foundations of the new-
ly dug basement.

¥

A CENTRAL heating plant, new
wiring, plumbing, interior deco-
rating and landscaping was the ir-
mediate job before getting the
church back into full activity.
Total cost of the 150-foot square
lot, building and furnishings is set
at about $20,000.

From its small start the church
has grown steadily until today the
congregation and Sunday school
has an attendance of about 100
each.

In - addition to its regular
ligious services, the Church of the
Nazarene plans special activities
for its young people, and sponsors
revival and evangelistic meetings
periodically throughout the year.

: 4  §

re-



\

Church Nees Met by Membership

Someone has said that “A church
which needs many things is a sue-
cessful church because its people
work together as one man in the
service of Christ.”

This might well have been the
motto, of the United Brethren in
Christ Church when it first be-
came a part of Birmingham in the
opening years of World War II.

Formation of the church. came
about in 1941, The Rev. Lloyd Eby,
pastor of the Warrendale United
Brethren in Christ Church, De-
troit, saw the lack of religious
facilities in the southwest section
of Birmingham.

A canvass was made of the
Pierce school district. Many fam-
ilies were found to be without
church affiliation and others felt
the established churches too far
away for their children to attend
Sunday School regularly.
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A CLASSROOM in Pierce school
was the first location of the new
group. Sunday school classes were
held there under the direction of
Mrs. Bessie Slusser and Mrs. Barn-
hardt, daughters of ordained Unit-
ed. Brethren ministers.

A year later Stanley Currie of
Detroit joined the staff and

EDIFICE LOCATED AT 14 MILE, EDGEWOOD .

Basement has been added, furnishings modernized

worked wholeheartedly to build up*
the small group.

The war interrupted his work,
but when he received his army dis-
charge in 1945, he returned to Bir-
mingham and took over as Sunday
school superintendent.

With the steady growth of the
Sunday school the need for a regu-
lar church program was seen. The
services of the Rev. Ayer of Ohio
were made available to the church
and an even greater growth began.

THE GROUP had purchased lots

on 14 Mile road at Edgewood, and
in 1945 moved their present
church building onto the site.

An active program of church im-
provement got underway, with
church members handling much of
the work themselves during the
labor-shortage war years.

A new basement was dug under
the building, new heating equip-
ment installed and proper lighting.
The building was treated to a gen-
eral overhaul, new windows and a

coat of gleaming white paint and
a parking lot was laid out for
church-goers.

Formal dedication of the build-
ing in February, 1949, was presid-
ed over by Bishop A. Johnson of
Huntington, Ind.

In 1950 the Rev. Lee J. Griffy of
Detroit became the regular churc
pastor. »

Under his leadership the Bir-
mingham congregation has not on-
ly become self-supporting but sup-

ports a full-time mission worker
in Sierre Leone, Africa.

One of the projects is periodic
visits to the Detroit Rescue Mis-
sion, where Mr. Griffy, with the
assistance of his congregation, con-
ducts services.

The Birmingham group is a
member of the Detroit conference
of the United Brethren in Christ
Church, with the Rev. Paul
Graham, guperintendent.

Doorstep Mystery
Remains Unsolved

An unsolved mystery concerned
a wooden box used as a door step
at the rear of the Methodist church
on Mill street (West Maple) in
1883.

It was an ordinary looking wood-
en box and after its use as a, door
step for many years, it was coming
apart and was in a general dilapi-
dated condition,

The caretaker of the church, Ira
Chatfield, removed the box from its
resting place and noticing some-
thing peculiar about it, began to
knock it apart.
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WHAT HE FOUND was most
surprising. Carefully packed with
paper, the box contained a jew-
eler’s anvil, 375 watch crystals of
assorted sizes, a lot of clock
springs, clock keys, a gold ring
with the set removed and numer-
ous other articles. .

How did the box get there? Ex-
actly how long had it been there?
Who put the box there?

Nobody ever knew.

General Electric
Traffic Appliances

Proctor Electrical

Toastmaster

Rubbermaid Houseware

J Bissell Sweepers
Kordit Clothes Lines

Stanley Tools

Revere Ware

Scott’s Lawn Products

Ecko Kitchen Tools
& Cutlery

Wearever Aluminum

Dazey Kitchen
Equipment

Tru-Temper
Garden Tools

Simoniz

Eveready Flashlights
and Ratterieg

West Bend Aluminum

205 N. Woodward

Hardware Galore!l

has gone into the development of this Birmingham com-
munity. And being the oldest hardware store in Birming-
ham, we’re proud of the

44 Years

Of Service & Supply

that has materially aided in this growth. In the
past, Birmingham residents have looked to, us
tor famous brand names and their assured
quality. Today it gives us great satisfaction to
be able to offer these well known hardware items.

Wilson Sporting Goods
Tavern Candles
Mirro Aluminum

Atkin Saws

Ransburg Hand
Painted Kitchenware

Taylor Thermometers

Scotch Tape

Club Aluminum

Yale Locks

Plumb Tools

HUSTO
HARDW ARE

BIRMINGHAM’S OLDEST HARDWARE- STORE
Continuous Service Since 1909

Cosco Kitchen
Stools and Tables

Diston Saws

Thermos Products

Sherwin . Williams Paints

Utica Tools

Sunbeam

Johnson’s Wax

Silex
Cory Knife Sharpeners

Wagener Kitchen
Utensils
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Page 12 May, 1953
BIRMINGHAM ECCENTRIC
75th Anniversary Edition

B’ham’s Newest
Church Formed
5 Months Ago

Organizational plans for Bir«
mingham’s newest church started
in January 1953 after several dis-
cussions among interested parties
in the area and officials of the
Detroit Congregational association.

Under the direction of Jack A.
Clark. and with the assistance of
Dr. Edward Willcox, head of the
Detroit association, the need for a
Congregational church here was
established.

On Jan. 25 the first public meet-
ing was held, when tentative plans,
requirements and the possibility of
meeting them were discussed.

Response to this meeting showed
considerable demand for such a
church in Birmingham and further
plans for its establishment were
launched.
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A SECOND meeting March 1
assured church officials in the De-
troit and New York offices that
there were excellent possibilities
for the group here. Both organi-
zations pledged support to the new
church, and Dr. Robert M. Frehse,
member of the Detroit Round Table
of Catholics, Jews and Protestants,
became supply pastor during the
organizational period.

The church formally was organ-
ized at this meeting when more
%han 40 persons signed the Coven-
ant. It was voted to include as
founding members all those who
signed prior to the Easter Sunday
service, with charter members be-
ing accepted for the balance of
the year.

Dr. Frehse in his first appear-
ance before the new congregation,
spoke on “Brotherhood”.

: ¥ 7
LATER IN March another meet-
ing was held and the church name,
“Congregational Church, Birming-
ham” selected by popular vote.

Various committees were ap-
pointed to form women’s and men’s
groups, establish a Sunday

School and find a temporary home
for the church.

JFirst formal service of the
church was held Easter Sunday in
the First Presbyterian church, with
Dr. Frehse officiating. ,

Weekly services started April
12, with the enrolled congregation
numbering approximately one hun-
dred. . i

Unity Center Meets
In Theater Bldg.

Although it is one of Birming-
ham’s smaller religious groups, the
Unity Center is maintaining its
place in the community and stead-
ily forging ahead.

Served at present by Frank C.
Glabach, a Ferndale attorney, the
group was formed here in 1942
when a number of Birmingham
residents expressed an interest in
Unity teachings.

Its formative years were guided
by Mrs. Virginia Shipley, an or-
dained Unity minister, who still
remains active in the group’s
teaching programs.

First meetings were held in the
Birmingham Community House,
As the project grew, both in mem-
bership and the amount of class
work given, the meeting place
there became inadequate. After
considerable discussion, the Unity
Center was established in the Bir-
mingham Theater building on
South Woodward, where meetings
now are held.
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A PART of the Unity School of
Christianity of Lee’s Summit, Mo.,
the group is undenominational and
nonsectarian, faithful to its pur-
pose not to found a new church
but to give help and guidance to
members of any church or those
without any church affiliations.

The Unity movement here was
110 years old before it began its
I first Sunday service programs, un-
| der Glabach’s guidance and direc=
tion.

Today, - in addition to these,
Wednesday afternoon and Friday
evening study groups also are a
part of the regular program here,

Among the first graduates of
Cranbrook school in June 1931,
were five local boys, They were:
Joseph William Torrence, 1424
Yorkshire Road; Harlow Palmer
Davock II, 641 Dewey Lane; Aaron
Switzer Brown, Nicolet road,
Bloomfield Hills; Bruce Dunecan
MacDonald, Cranbrook road,
Bloomfield, and Richard Jeffrey

Sawyer, Abbey road, Birmingham.. .



HAS SERVED SCIENTISTS FOR 26 YEARS

But first meeting was held 37 years ago
Scientist Meetings
First Held in Homes

In 1916 the several Christian Scientists residing in Bir-
mingham felt a desire to attend services of their own de-
nomination without the necessity of traveling to Detroit or
Pontiac. Not to be stopped because they had no building
in which to meet, they elected to gather in private homes
rather than make this weekly journey.

Their first meeting June 11, 1916, was a far cry from
their present place of worship. That initial service was at-
tended by eight adults. While their service was conducted
in the home of a member, six children crowded into a car
in the garage for their Sunday school class!

For a time the group continued -

to meet in homes, but the need
for a central meeting place was
uppermost in their minds. On Sept.
3, 1916, a committee report stated
that the services would henceforth
be held in the ballroom of the Bir-
mingham club at the northwest
corner of Woodward and Merrill
streets. Shortly after the club also
made one of the smaller rooms
available for Sunday school classes.

With this much establishment be-
hind it, it soon became apparent
that action should be taken for the
formal organization of a Christian
Science group in Birmingham.

On May 11, 1917, the Christian
Science Society of Birmingham, a
branch of the Mother Church, the
First Church of Christ, Scientist,
of Boston, Mass., was organized
with 10 charter members.
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STILL SEEKING a permanent
home, the group purchased a build-
ing site on the east side of the city.
When the club property was made
available to the Society in 1918,
the east side site was sold, the club
property purchased, and the work
started to transform the former
club into a more churchly setting.

The building proyided ample
room for Sunday services and Sun-
day school classes as well as a
reading room. Members welcomed
it as a most progressive step open-
ing the way for them to perform
a greater community service.

It was during this period that
the Birmingham society sponsored
ijts first Christian Science lecture.
Held in Baldwin high school, the
lecture attracted a large number
of persons from nqarby communi-
ties, many coming in chartered in-
terurban cars.
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IT ALSO was during this period
that the first distribution of Mrs.
Mary Baker Eddy’s \.mtmg*s' was
made through Baldwm_Pub}xc 1i-
brary. In addition, a lending hl?rar,y
was established in the Society’s
reading room. : f

As Birmingham grew, its ex-
pansion was reflected in the in-
creased membership of the society.
Once again its facilities became
cramped and once agam the so-
ciety was ‘faced with the problem
of providing a larger place of wor-
N h iet or

uly, 1924, the society was or-
gailrilzid yinto a church. Lack of
proper space became even more
pronounced and in earl.y 1925 mem-
bers knew it was time for Iim-
mediate action.
ek

THE PRESENT SITE on the
southwest corner of Willets ar}d
"Chester streets was purchased in
1925. The group more and more
began to appreciate the foresight-
edness of the founders vyho acti-
vated a building fund while meet-
ing in private homes. Through the
years, contributions had been re-
ceived for this purpose and now
made building plans look far less
formidable.

By July, 1926, the Woodward
avenue property (now the location
of the Atlantic and Pacific Tea
company’s Birmingham store) had

been sold and plans were immedi-
ately set in motion for the con-
struction of the new building.
i 7 7

THE CORNERSTONE was laid
Dec. 7, 1926, and by the following
July, regular services were being
held in the building, although a
few finishing touches still were
needed for completion.

Formal dedication ceremony for
the $120,000 building was held
June 10, 1928. A history of Chris-
tian Science teachings in Birming-
ham was read by one of the char-
ter members, Mrs. Frances M.
Reinke.

The auditorium of the building,
seating 400 persons as does the
Sunday school rooms, did not fol-
low the usual church pattern of
pews, but opera chairs were in-
stalled instead. The whole interior
impressed all who attended the
dedication with its air of quiet
dignity and reverence.

In addition to the church build-
ing, the Christian Science group
currently operates a reading room
on East Maple and several times
each year sponsors the local ap-
pearance of speakers from the
I\/illqther Church’s board of lecture-
ship.

from Birmingham,
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Unitarian
Fellowship
Formed in

July, 1948

Birmingham’s Unitarian Fellow-
ship had its start in July 1948, at
the home of Mr. and Mrs. John C.
K. Cowen in Bloomfield Hills.

At that time several persons
Pontiac and
Royal Oak met with Miss Patricia
McMahon of Pontiac to discuss the
possibility of forming such a group
here.

A second meeting was held in
September when the Rev. Grant A.
Butler of the American Unitarian
association, Boston, Mass., was the
guest speaker. He fully explained
the purposes and aims of the group
and urged the establishment of a
fellowship in Birmingham.

During the following winter and
spring, meetings were held at the
homes of Mr. and Mrs. William
Hambley, Mr. and Mrs. Eugene
Hesz, Mr. and Mrs. Alec Parnie
and Albert M. MacCleery.
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BY-LAWS were drawn up and
the first formal meeting was held
in March at the Community House.
Munroe Husbands of the Unitarian
extension and church maintenance
department in Boston addressed the
meeting.

In April charter members elect-
ed MacCleery as president; W. O.
Vogt, treasurer and Mrs. Eugene
Hasz, secretary.

October, 1950, saw the organi-
zation of a church school under the
leadership of Mrs. Parnie.

The teaching staff then included
MacCleery and Mr. and Mrs. Vogt,
with regular Sunday classes at the
Apple Orchard school. Worship
services were conducted by the Rev.
Merrill O. Bates. who became the
regular pastor of the group in
1952.
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SINCE THE formation of the
church school, attendance has in-
creased regularly, calling for addi-
tional staff members. The group
has scheduled regular Sunday
preaching services, meeting first at
the Community House but more
recently at the Birmingham YMCA
building on W. Lincoln. The current
membership is about 150.

Throughout the year the Fellow-
ship sponsors numerous events
such as discussion groups and social
hours, nearly all held in the homes
of members. :

The Birmingham Fellowship cur-
rently is headed by Robert Dearth,
president. :

CONGREGATION’S NEW CHURCH ON 14 MILE RD.

Former location was on Bennaville near Woodward
Embury Methodist
Was Congregational

Embury Methodist church

began its activities in 1923.

While it now is affiliated with the Methodist church, it
started as a member of the Congregational church.
In 1923, the Rev. David Curry, then minister of the United

Presbyterian church, resigned

his pastorate and was ordain-

ed into the Congregational ministry. Under his leadership
the church was organized as the Bennaville United Presby-
terian Church, Inc. The name was changed a few. months
later to the Bennaville Avenue Congregational church. It
also was known as the First Congregational church.

The first building was started¥

in the fall of 1923 and built chiefly
by volunteer labor. It was planned
to make it not only a place of
worship, but also a community
center. At that time Birmingham
extended only as far as Lincoln
avenue. The territory from Lincoln
to 14 Mile road was a separate com-
munity, known as Eco City.
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THE BUILDING was not im-
mediately finished. In October,
1924, a ten-week campaign was
inaugurated to complete the struc-
ture.

When services first were held in
the building, there was mno base-
ment and two coal stoves provided
the heat.

After the pastorates of the fol-
lowing who served as Congrega-
tional ministers Dr. Ralph H. Fer-
ris, John Hagerman and Edward
Asplin, a meeting was held with
officials of the Methodist Union,
the Detroit District home mission-
ary society.

The local congregation agreed to
assume an indebtedness of $1,900
against the property and the Meth-
odist church offered certain help.

CHARTER MEMBERSHIP day

Shepherd Lutheran Serves SE Area

In June 1949, a group of 25 Lutheran pastors made a
survey of the 14 Mile area east of Woodward to-evaluate
the possibility of a new Lutheran ehurch.

As a result of the study, a temporary frame chapel was
erected and dedicated Oct. 9, 1949, with the Rev. H. G.
Allwardt as pastor. There was a charter membership of 34
communicants with 86 children enrolled in the Sunday

School.

. . e
The congregation was organized?

formally in February, 1950. First
president of the congregation was
Adolph Zehnder, who had been the
secretary of Epiphany Lutheran
church, in Detroit.

Present officers are Charles Par-
rott, president; Perry Roulette,
vice president; Edward Boltz, sec-
retary; Joseph Bassett, treasurer
and Victor Bohne, financial secre-
tary.

With the rapid growth of the
community, the temporary chapel
soon proved to be inadequate. Plans
for the first permanent unit were
completed in April, 1951.

BUILT WITH LABOR CONTRIBUTED BY MEMBERS

THE FOLLOWING months re-
vealed a marvelous spirit of co-
operation among the small congre-
gation. Sunday afternoons and
week-day evening frequently found
large groups of the membership
donating hours of labor for the
new church.

On October 20, 1951, the mnew
church was dedicated. By this time
the membership had increased to
160 with almost 200 children in the
Sunday school.

The community continued to

grow and the church along with it.
Today it numbers 250 communi-

To become gym when final church plant is erected

cants with 285 children in the Sun-
day school.

Plans for a new Sunday school
and administration building will be-
gin in the near future.

Organizations of Our Shepherd
church include the mixed choir, the
Women’s club, with a membership
of 50; the Walther League society
for young people, a Couples’ club,
and a Men’s club.
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THE CHURCH has been inter-
ested in a community youth pro-
gram, having sponsored community
athletics and parties. A vacation
Bible school has been an annual
institution at the church since its
founding.

The present church structure has
been designed to be easily convert-
ed into a gymnasium when the final
church plant has been erected. The
church site covers approximately
6% acres. A large athletic field
is to be completed in the spring.

Served Several Terms
As County Poor Supt.

Friend Belding, a charter mem-
ber of the Birmingham Masons,
was elected one of the first of
three superintendents of the poor

in January, 1839.

At this time the county com-
missioners abolished the distinetion
between county and township poor,
assuming them all as a county
charge. The terms of office for the
county superintendents of the poor
were fixed at three years.

Friend Belding served several
terms as county poor superintend-

ent, his last term of office ending
in 1856. :

\

as a Methodist church was January
18, 1931. The Methodist Union sent °
Miss Lydia Baird into the field and
she continued through the winter
of 1931.

The Rev. Leigh Hagle, who was
pastor of the Berkley Methodist
church volunteered a ministry
through the spring and summer of
1931 until he was appointed regu-
larly in September of that year. '
Mr. Hagle continued as pastor un-
til September, 1932, when the Rev.
John Marvin was appointed.

In September, 1934, the Rev.
Erwin King was appointed and
continued until June, 1935.

In the fall and spring of 1936-
37 the church was served by sup-
ply pastors, the Rev. John Marvin,
Sr., and the Rev. Williams. Rudolph
Boyce served the congregation as
student supply pastor from July,
1937 until 1941. ;

The Rev. Danel Jorgensen served
thg Embury and Hazel Park Meth-
odist churches from 1941 to 1943.
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DURING THE pastorate of the
Rev. Max Moore, 1943-45, the sanc-
tuary was remodeled by volunteer
help and chancel furnishings and
pews were installed.

The -Rev. Jesse Epps served this
ghurch and the Southfield Method-
ist church from 1945-47, and be-
came Embury’s first full-time min-
ister in 1947-48. It was during his
pastorate that the new church site
and parsonage at 1276 Bird street
were purchased.

The present pastor, the Rev.
Reginald B. Becker, was appointed
in June, 1948. In late summer 1949,
a concerted effort was launched to
obtain a new church at an early
date. On Palm Sunday of 1950 a
Hammond electric organ was in-
stalled.
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GROUND WAS broken Sunday,
Aug. 26, 1951, for the new church
on East 14 Mile Road at Croft
street. The new church was con-
secrated Oct. 26, 1952, by Bishop
Marshall R. Reed.

Throughout the church’s history
the Sunday school has had a cen-
tral position. It has been large and
strong in proportion to the total
program of the church. It now has
a staff of 18 officers and teachers.

.The Woman’s Society of Chris-
tian Service has a varied program
of worship, study and service un-
der the leadership of Mrs. Melvin
Uppleger, president. A Methodist
Men organization wés formed
about a year ago with Lee Weldon
as first president, succeeded by
William Lomas. *
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THE METHODIST Youth Fel-
lowship, under the leadership of
Mr. and Mrs. Hugh Loveland,
counsellors, and Sydney Fawecett,
president, is striving to meet the
spiritual and recreational needs of
a growing membership.

Throughout the years the con-
gregation has made sacrificial ef-
forts to meet the needs of its com-
munity. It is now rising to the
challenge of serving not only its
present membership but also the

new and growing neighborhood into
which it has moved.
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Baptist Church Re-formed -
In 1870 After 30-Year Lapse

Back in the days when Birmingham was the proverbial|

“wide place in the road,” a grou

p of interested persons started

the first activities of the Baptist church.

Not much is known of those
in 1833. Only a short paragrap

early struggles which started

county mentions the Birmingham church, and that to state

simply that it was dissolved in
For the nmext 80 years nothing+
was done to reorganize, but in 1870
another group became active in the
establishment of a” Baptist church
here. The permanent organization
wag formed on June 28, 1870.
Shortly after the group formed,
two lots were purchased for the
erection of a building. For three
years “The Regular Baptist Church
of Birmingham” met in the various
homes of its 17 charter members.
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1840.

A pastor came from Pontiac every
Sunday to deliver the sermons.

It was not long before the Bir-
mingham and Royal Oak churches
joined forces and thus were able
to support a pastor. Regular serv-
ices were held in the old Academy
building at the corner of Maple
and Pierce.
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FATE WAS NOT through with
its rough treatment of the group.
however, for that building burned
to the ground shortly after they
began to use it. Once again the
church was homeless.

Arrangements were made to meet
in the Methodist Meeting House
and all went well until “the Meth-
odists expelled the church for

| preaching the doctrines of the New

h in an old history of Oakland |

Testament” (quoted verbatim from
old Baptist church records which
went on to say), “after that Broth-
er Finn preached in the streets”.

In 1873 the Baptists took the
major step toward having their own
church home and named B. Daniels
and E. Mathewson to prepare plans
and details. » 7 =~

THESE TWO supervised erection
of a building at the northwest cor-
ner of Willets and Bates streets,
(fifty-five years later it was re-
placed by the present building).

The first structure cost $1,700 and4+——

was dedicated free of debt on Sept.
28, 1873.

The following year the congrega-
tion was honored when the Michi-
gan. Baptist association selected

V-
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THE FINEST
DRYCLEANING

IN

BIRMINGHAM |

Because We Must Continually
Strive To Make This Statement
True, We Have Installed A

| 2 HOUR

DRYCLEANING SERVICE
And The Finest Of
SHIRT LAUNDRY
SERVICE

332 N. Woodward

MI 4-1313

PRESENT CHURCH DEDICATED IN 1929

Replaced original 55-year-old building

Birmingham and its Baptist church
for the scene of the 47th annual
meeting.
Although the growth of the
church from that time on was
steady, records show that it faced
many problems, not among the
least being the question of finances.
The pastor received $7 a week,
the panitor 50 cents. This repre-
gsented a large sum to the church
members and special plang were
launched to meet the costs.
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TRUSTEE AND members of the
Ladies Aid society were asked to
see there always was enough mon-
ey to meet these obligations. A
part of the money was raised by
renting facilities to the TUnited
Presbyterians for $50 a year, and
to save other expenses, the two
groups united their Sunday schools.

The first to serve the new church
was the Rev. M. Breaker, who ‘al-
though he preached “brisk and ef-
fective” sermons, Mr. Breaker
found it necessary to leave after
six weeks to complete his educa-
tion.

He was followed by the Rev. Mr.
Van Winkle, who left his mark on
the church and community by per-
forming one of the most unusual
marriages in the history of both.
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MR. VAN WINKLE was busily
picking cherries in his garden one
afternoon when a breathless couple
stopped before him, announcing
they wished to be married but must
hurry to catch the cars to Detroit.

Mr. Van Winkle rose to the oc-
casion by not wasting time to climb
down from the ladder, but perform-
ing the ceremony from his perch

‘thigh in the cherry tree.

Life continued to go anything
but smoothly for the church, and
a rapid change of ministers kept
it more or less in an upset condi-
tion. At times they had supply
pastors from other churches. One

Pontiac, served the local church
for almost four years!
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IN 1890, when the church man-
aged to engage the services of a
resident pastor who showed every
sign of remaining, the congrega-
tion’s joy knew no bounds. There
was nothing too much for them
to attempt if they felt: it would
please their pastor.

In 1893, when the Rev. Church
was ill and hospitalized in Ann Ar-
bor, the members of his parish
launched a plan of ‘“donation so-
cials” to assist him.

His successor, the Rev. Rogers,
was given the same cordial welecome
and attentive care. Unaccustomed
to outbursts of generosity on the
part of his parishioners, Mr. Rog-
ers often found himself unable to
express his thanks.
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THIS WAS the case when he
was presented a beautifully bound
copy of “The Life of Moody”, and
later when the $26.85, collected in
an “envelope social” was turned
over to him.

Perhaps the statement that the
amount was not to be applied to
his salary shocked the good gen-
tleman more than the actual gift.

Mr. Rogers tried to resign his
pastorate in 1891, but was refused.
He continued to serve in Birming-
ham until 1905.

In 1903, the foundation of the
church was raised and the new
Sunday school rooms furnished.
Additional proof of the success of
the church came just a few years
later when a remodeling of the
of $1,700.
building was undertaken at a cost
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came pastor of the church in 1916,
and steps were taken to provide
living quarters for him. A parson-
age was purchased for $5,500.
During the six years he served
the church, its entire indebtedness
was paid off and a lot at the cor-

iner of Maple and Bates was pur-

chased for $16,000. A . five-year

of these, the Rev. Mr. Miller of

THE REYV. Peter M. Mackay be-

|pledge of $14,000 also was made to
‘the board of missions.

It was during the pastorate of
the Rev. Thomas J. Edwards, who
served from 1922-27, that the con-
gregation began to express a grow-
ing desire for a new building to
meet the needs of the rapidly ex-
panding community. !
It was not until 1927, however,
during the pastorate of the Rev.
David L. Woodward, that the pro-
gram was actually launched.
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ESTIMATED COSTS of the new
building were placed roughly at
$100,000. The congregation im-
mediately pledged $4,500 and in-
dicated additional pledges could
and would be secured.

The Maple-Bates property was
sold for $80,000 and by the fall
of 1828, congregational pledges had
totaled $50,000, with an additional
$28,000 promised.

The cornerstone of the new build-
ing was laid June 3, 1928. Plans
were for an auditorium seating 600
persons, an assembly hall to accom-
modate 400 Sunday school children
and a wing for administrative of-
fices.

When the building was dedicated
early in March, 1929, it also housed
a $12,000 organ, the gift of Mrs.
Rebecca Hall. The instrument was
constructed especially for this
building.
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THE LOCAL church was host
again in 1931 to the Michigan as-
sociation. Among the many popu-
lar and noted personages to attend
this convention was Wilber M.
Brucker, former governor of Mich-
igan. More than 1,000 persons at-
tended.

Life for the church became calm-
er now and the progress of it was
steady and true with far fewer of
the struggles it had experienced in
the past.
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MORE AND MORE it became
an important factor in the general
life of the community. Its doors
were often opened to meetings of
civie rather than religious import.
Its gymnasium was made available
for sports programs related to the
YMCA. It became the meeting
place of several large groups spon-
soring programs of broad scope,
such as Community Council affairs.

In 1947 the Rev. Emil Kontz,
current pastor, became a part of
the church family, coming to Bir-
mingham from Chicago where he
had headed the midwest office of
the American Baptist Home Mis-
sion society.

During the next two years the
church paid off all outstanding in-
debtedness, celebrating the event
in 1949 with an old-fashioned
church gathering and mortgage
burning.

It also was during this period
that the Sunday school was cited
for its outstanding programs and
became the model class on a De-
troit television program.
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MEMBERS OF the church took
on the task of a complete cleanup
of church properties and with
rented spraying equipment painted
the interior from basement to third
floor shower rooms.

Aggressive action also was taken
to increase the church membership
with excellent results. Attendance
at church services nearly tripled
with an actual increase of 35 per
cent in members.

Throughout the entire church, in
all departments, this rise was
noted, until today the church is en-
joying the greatest prosperity of
its life in Birmingham.

Presently the church is engaged
in an extensive improvement pro-
gram which includes redecorating
the sanctuary, exterior landscaping
and purchase of a new parsonage.

A stormy life, that of the Bap-
tist church. It has weathered all
the ill winds that have blown
against it and in the words of its
pastor, “looks to the future with
high hope.”




Saint Hugo’s Is Gothic

Memorial to 2 Brothérs ’

The church of St. Hugo of the Hills, famed as an authentie
gem of ecclesiastical architecture, nestles in the heart of
Bloomfield Hills on Opdyke road.

The church, drawn in the Nor-+

man Gothic tradition, was erected
by the late Theodore F. MacManus
and Mrs. MacManus on their fam-
ily estate, Stonycroft, as a memor-
ial to their two deceased sons,
Hugo and Hubert.

Dedication, attended by the hier-
archy of the Roman Catholic
Church, took place on June 28,
1936. By direct Papal dispensation
St. Hugo’s contains a crypt where
Myr. MacManus, the sons and a son-
in-law, Alexander Toluboff, are
interred.
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APPROPRIATELY named St.
Hugo after the patron of the hunt,
the church hews rigidly to the
monastic establishments of medie-
val times. Thick native stone walls
pierced by high, narrow openings
support a steep, sloping slate roof.

A deep Gothic arch shelters the
facade entrance. A mnarrow lancet

window admits light to the choir
and silhouetted against the win-
dow’s shadow is a sculpture of St.
Hugo. The facade culminates in a
heavy stone cross, which is mir-
rored in a still pond fronting the
church.

The interior of St. Hugo’s is
fashioned from hand-cut stones
with an open timber. ceiling. ‘Rail-
ling's are of heavy wrought iron
spindles anchored in the masonry
and joined by heavy rope.

A figure of Christ, fashioned in
Oberammergau, highlights the
sanctuary and high altar. Stations
of the Cross are hand-fashioned
from solid blocks of wood from
the Austrian Tyrol.

Upon its completion, the Church
was deeded by Mr. and Mrs. Mac-
Manus to the Diocese of Detroit
with the following dedication:

“We pray that it may be the

holy playground of little children,
the joyous refuge and meeting
place of the family and, in every
fact, God’s House of happy wel-
come to His own.”

And so it has been.
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FROM A CONGREGATION of
twenty families, originally mem-
bers of Holy Name parish, St.
Hugo’s has grown to some two
hundred families.

Activities include the Usher’s
Club and the Holy Name Society
for male parishioners, and the St.
Hugo Altar Guild and the Na-
tional Council of Catholic Women
for the women of the parish.

The late Rev. William W. Ryan
was the first pastor of St. Hugo
of the Hills. He was succeeded by
the late Rev. Daniel T. Wholihan.

The Rev. Francis T. Stack, as-
sisted by the Rev. John L. Howard
is present pastor.

’
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ST. HUGO OF THE HILLS

Gift of MacManus family serves the Hills
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ABOUT TWELVE YEARS ago
St. Hugo’s parochial school was

Tbuilt by the late Walter O. Briggs.

The school is under the supervision
of the ‘Sisters of the Immaculate

Heart of Mary, and has an enroll-
ment of 275 students in eight
grades.

Lathrup Community Church
Is One of Newest in Area

The ground work for the church
in Lathrup Village, formerly Lath-

rup townsite, was started in 1944.

At the May meeting of the Comity
department of the Detroit Council
of Churches, Rev. A. M. Meikle,
superintendent of the Congrega-
tional Association of Detroit, re-
quested permission to survey the
possibilities of a church in the
area,

The survey was completed dur-
ing the summer of 1944 and, at
the October meeting of the Comi-~
ty department, it was decided to
assign Lathrup Village to the Con-
gregational denomination for the
development of a church.

During the same month the
board of trustees of the Congre-
gational Association of Detroit
voted to assume responsibility for
the church and obtained backing
from the Congregational board of
Home Missions in New York, thus
assuring - a substantial aid from
them,

v ! v
WORLD WAR II delayed further

action, although a survey resulted

in the selection of a site on South-
field road, just north of the Annie
Lathrup School.

At a November 21, 1946 meeting,
temporary officers were chosen and
the name of “Townsite Community
Church” selected.

Kenneth W. Thompson was
named chairman of a group of fif-
ty charter members at a meeting
on December 4, 1946,

Among those appointed to the
newly-formed general committee
were Charles Fey, Norman H. Iv-
erson, John W. Sanders, Clifford B.
Smith, Mrs. Leslie A, Brisebois,
Mrs. Wendell Doering, Mrs. Joseph
F. Rankin, Mrs. Richard H. Stone,
Mrs. Charles W. Zink, Mrs. Thom-
as H. Myers and Edwin Schippel.
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SHORTLY ‘AFTERWARDS the
Congregational Association of De-
troit and Mr. and Mrs. Charles D,
Kelley donated 18 lots for the
church and funds for a parsonage.

Church sessions’ were originally
held in the school auditorium which
was adapted for use by the chan-
cel committee, headed by C. B.

(Continued from
Page One)

made it necessary to provide better
facilities for the primary depart-
ment, with a stucco building on
Henrietta street being built in 1921,
Miss Ella Adams, superintendent
of this division until her retire-
ment in 1946, was assisted by Miss
Grace Heacock, Alta Green, Flor-
* ence Wall, Mrs. Luther Heacock
and Margaret McCarroll.

Families active in church proj-
ects during the foregoing period
include the names of Adams, Arm-

strong, Blumberg, Botting, Bird,
Camp, Campbell, Clarke, Claxton,
Cornell, Dalley, Dennis, Doying,

Eley, Evens, Ford, Graham, Green,
Haack, Hascall, Heacock, Hulbert,
Hupp, Keyser, Kist, Kreger, Lan-
german, LaTourette, Looney, Low-
man, Lynd, McCarroll, MacGreg-
gor, Miller, Morrow, Murray,
Nichols, Peabody, Peck, Quarton,
Rainey, Schneider, Slusser, Sly,
Smith, Staley, Streb, Utter, Wag-
ner, Wall, Walton, Watkins, Wes-

TOWNSITE COMUNITY CHURCH
Congregational church situated on Southfield road

Smith. Materials were donated by
Thomas H. Myers.

200 adults and 100 children at-
tended the first service which was
held February 2, 1947. Y

A building campaigh, headed by
trustees T. H. Myers and Charles
Fey, was begun in October, 1947.
Funds raised in the area were
matched by the New York Home
Mission Board and the Detroit As-
sociation, and were enlarged by a
grant - from the Kresge Founda-
tion. .
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GROUND-BREAKING  services
were held July .10, 1949, with the
cornerstone being laid October 9
of the same year. The first service
in the partly-completed church was
held on Maundy Thursday, April
6, 1950, when the church was for-
mally dedicated.

Speaking at the morning. serv-
ices was Dr. Harold N. Skidmore,
superintendent of the  Michigan
Congregational Churches. Walter
J. Howard, chairman of the build-

ing committee, presented the keys

to Leslie A, Brisebois, chairman
of the board of trustees.

Participating in the evening
services were Dr. Charles Haven
Myers, minister of the North Con-
gregational. Association, and the
Rev. Reginald Becker, president of
the Birmingham Council of Church-
es.
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THE CHURCH HAS a capacity
of 316 and the Fellowship Hall can
seat an additional 250, The build-
ing ineluded a large parlor, offices,
‘church’ school rooms, and a kitchen
furnished with modern equipment
by the women of the church, who
also donated. the organ.

An anonymous donor contributed
the Maas Chimes and Bell Tower
Reproducing System. .

The Rev. John D. Rose is the

| |[the council’s first president.

present minister. Nelson H. Kim-
berly is church clerk; R. Neil Bran-
nan, chairman of trustees, Albert
E. Little, treasurer; and Mrs. Mona
Spezzano, organist. -
Membership includes 500, with

350 children enrolled in the church
school.

. LT L)

Birmingham’s
terby, Whitney, Wiles and Wiley.

ANOTHER POPULATION up-
surge found the congregation again
cramped in present quarters. At the
March board meeting under the
chairmanship of Amos Gregory, it
was decided to secure the services
of Dr. F. O. Hunt of the board of
home missions to plan to promote
a financial crusade for a new build-
ing.

In March, 1950 it was decided
to construct a mnew Gothic-type
church at the southeast corner of
West Maple and Pleasant street.

The cornerstone was laid Sunday,
April 15, 1951. Aided by a $100,000
grant from the Kresge Founda-
tion, building continued through
the summer of 1952. Last services
in the seventy-five year old build-
ing were held August 24, 1952.
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THE FIRST WEEK of October,
1952, was devoted to consecration
services, opened by Bishop Mar-

First Church

shall R. Reed. The mnew church,
completed at a cost of $750,000,
includes a sanctuary, balcony, par-
lors, music and robing rooms,
church offices and staff administra-
tion facilities, assembly rooms for
vouth and children, kitchens, class-
rooms, and parking facilities.

Forty ministers have served the
Birmingham charge, beginning in
1854 with Salmon Steele. The Rev.
Arnold F. Runkel, present minister,
is assisted by associate minister,
the Rev. James W. Wright.

* Women's Council

Coordinates Work

It was back in 1937 when Mrs. John Martin, wife of the
First Methodist church’s pastor, saw “unity” as the answer
to the problems of community help from church women.

Birmingham’s church history is rich in incidents where
the “ladies of the church” took hold of a dream and made it
a reality. Through their efforts the many churches in this

 [“Piety Hill” area grew and prospered, but they felt there
| must be more they could do for the community and religious

4

. |work as a whole.

It was in May 1937 that Mrs.
Martin called the first group to-
gether. Representatives from five
churches met and from this begin-
ning the Birmingham Council of
Church Women was formed.

Mrs. Fred W. Johnson became
Her
official family was composed of
Mrs. H. D. Harris, vice president;
Mrs. E. C. Errickson, treasurer and
charter members Mrs. Guy Jensen,
Mrs. Victor Ogden and the late
Mrs. R. H. Peck.
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THE- GROWTH and worth of
the council perhaps is shown most
clearly in what it can and does pro-
vide. At the end of that first year
the council receipts totaled $18.20,
to be spent on its several projects.
Total  receipts for 1952 were
$769.98, collected through gifts and
the May Fellowship breakfast.

When the council was only a year
old, it tackled the problem of re-
ligious education in the -public
schools, Its Birmingham program
was patterned after the one used
successfully in Royal Oak and
Plymouth schools.

The sixth grade at Adams school
was the first group to have a
regular class in Bible study, taught
at first by a Miss Jenks. Mrs. Lor-
en Blunt. took charge of the class
shortly, and before long sixth
graders in all of Birmingham’s pub-
lic schools were receiving religious
instructions: Classes. were held in
the .schools . with two. sessions each
week. e
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MRS. BLUNT left the classes
which were taken over by a Mrs.
Large. All was going well until
gas rationing' during World War II
made her travel impossible and
Mrs. Blunt once more was called
into service. The Rev. D. B. Jor-
gensen of, Embury Methodist
church assisted with the program
at this time.

Local classes were dropped short-
ly after this when several sections
of the country were greatly dis-
turbed by religious education pro-
grams in the public schools.

For a brief period, however, the
council coptinued to supply instruc-
tors for: early morning classes in
the lower grades and a noon-hour
session at Barnum junior high
school.

One Brave Woman In the Grouﬁ

Birmingham’s Methodist church!
women have long been known to
be ardent and zealous church work-
ers. But 75 years ago, they not
only put on the usual bazaars and
church suppers, but did janitorial
service as well.

In October 1878, the good ladies
turned out to give the Methodist

church a thorough cleaning.

All went well until they came
to clean out the spittoons: in the
church vestibule. Only one lady
among the group had the pluck
and stamina to perform the dis-
agreeable task.

Church custodians of today are
undoubtedly grateful that the days
of tobacco chewing church mem-
bers are gone,

FROM ITS beginning, the Bir-
mingham Council of Church Wom-
en has sponsored community-wide
observances of World Day of
Prayer and an annual May break-
fast. Another annual feature car-
ried on for some years was an au-
tumn mission institute.

The World Day of Prayer, held
the first Friday in Lent, is a un-
ion program in Birmingham, which
the council sponsors. Through its
efforts, many prominent church
speakers have appeared here,
bringing important messages of
world-wide Christianity.

The council’s annual observance
of Armistice Day has been re-
placed by its World Community
day. This program is held the first
Friday in November,
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THE BIRMINGHAM council
takes its place in world affairs
with its Christian World missions,
Christian social relations and
Christian  World relations pro-
grams. The World Day of Prayer
program and May breakfast are
two of the annual events held here
to help support the broad projects.

The local council also supports
the work of the Protestant relig-
ious counselor for international
students - at  the University of
Michigan. >

Through its participation in this
activity = of \the - United - Church
Women of Michigan, the Birming-
ham council has been given the
‘opportunity to be hosts to several
groups- of these young foreign
students, Some have taken part in
several programs here,
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MOST RECENT project of .the
council, and perhaps one of the
broadest, is its work in sponsoring
visits of Red Cross mobile blood
units to the Birmingham area.

Working with representatives of
three Catholic parishes in the area,
St. Hugo’s Holy Name and Our
Lady Queen of Martyrs, the Coun-
cil has sponsored several such visits
and will continue their support as
long as the need for blood dona-
tions remains.

While the Council does not, or-
dinarily give recognition to a single
individual, considering the group
as a whole, instead, they do admit
to a great deal of pride concerning
Mrs. John K. Ormond.
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MRS. ORMOND. now is at Miraj,
India, helping her husband, Dr.
John Ormond; in his 38-year
project as a preacher-surgeon-
urologist-instructor at the Presby-
terian Mission hospital there.

The local council is a part of the
general department of United
Church Women of the National

Council of Churches of Christ in
the U.S.A.



THERE HAVE BEEN MANY MAYS
. . . SINCE THE DAYS OF HAYES

This month marks the 75th May The Birmingham Eccentric has recorded since its first
day of publication in 1878. :

What a wonderful and exciting 75 years it has been. Changes have occurred with
such rapidity that it is difficult to visualize life a short 75 years ago. Presidents, from Gen-
eral Rutherford B. Hayes to General Dwight D. Eisenhower, have appeared on the nao-
tional scene; nations have arisen; others have vanished from the earth; social and eco-
nomic revolutions have completely altered former patterns of living, and Everyman'’s life
has grown richer and fuller.

How long ago is 75 years?

Well, less than two years prior to the founding of this paper, General Custer and his
party were completely annihilated at Little Big Horn, and on the day of The Eccentric’s
first edition there were only thirty-eight states in the Union. Lord Tennyson was still Poet
Laureate of England; Pope Pius IX died to be succeeded by Leo XIII; the Umbria set an
England-to-U.S. trans-Atlantic crossing record of six days, four hours (present record, Liner

United States, three days, twelve hours); and Russic, as might be expected was engaged
in another war.

In sports, the boys were still fighting with bare knuckles and Boston won. the champi-
onship of the two-year-old National League—the American League had not yet come
into existence. : |

Of course, our ‘modern’ inventions were not even on the drawing boards—in fact,
many of the inventors had not been born. Radio and television were merely dreams. It
was in 1878 the Crookes—qgreatest of English scientists in the realm of exact science—dis-
covered the cathode ray, which, through the cathode ray tube, many years later, the
“eye" of television.

Storer. Broadcasting Company, pioneers in a comparatively new field of communica-
tion, last year celebrated its 25th anniversary. We are proud to have been a part of this
country’s great development as recorded by this paper. Because our executive offices are
located in Birmingham, we extend heartiest congratulations to our neighbor, The Eccen-
tric, upon its diamond anniversary. :

Through our stations WJBK and WJBK-TV, we are happy to provide radio and televi-
sion programs of religion, education and entertainment to the growing Birmingham-Bloom-
field area. ;

George B. Storer, President

STORER BROADCASTING COMPANY

199 PIERCE STREET, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN

Other stations owned by Storer Broadcasting Co: WSPD and WSPD-TV, Toledo—WAGA and WATA-TV, Atlanta—KEYL-TV, San Antonio
—WGBS, Miami—WWVA, Wheeling—WSAI, Cincinnati—WMMN, Fairmont, W. Va.



